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Dear shareholders,

Notwithstanding a turbulent macro-economic environment and
challenges at project development, 2015 turned out to be a year in
which we witnessed initial success of the business and growth strategy
at Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited.

In terms of business development, the Group commenced the delivery
of the pre-sold properties in Guilin to buyers and recognized the
property sales revenue in 2015. Wanda Plaza also marked its grand
opening during the year and has since become a landmark shopping
center in Guilin. In addition, the Group, jointly with its parent company,
Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (‘DWCP”), acquired the
Sydney Project, our second premium landmark project in Australia and
continued the development of existing projects. Following the pre-sales
of the London Project in the UK in 2014, we launched pre-sales at the
Chicago Project in the US and the Gold Coast Jewel Project in Australia
during the year, and received encouraging responses.

With support from our parent company, DWCP, the Group will remain
prudent in developing the existing projects, while seeking to identify new
investment opportunities with the objective of expanding our revenue
sources as well as improving our profitability.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group.

Ding Benxi
Chairman

16 March 2016
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LONDON PROJECT, UK

In September 2013, the Company acquired a project at 1 Nine Elms
Lane, London SW8 5NQ, in the UK with Wanda Commercial Properties
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited (“Wanda HK”) in the form of a joint venture,
in which the Company holds 60% and Wanda HK 40%. The planned
total gross floor area of the project is approximately 110,000 sg.m.,
and is expected to be developed into a high-end complex comprising
residential and hotel units. Pre-sale of residential portion commenced
in 2014 with outstanding results achieved, and a total of 339 residential
units were pre-sold up to the end of December 2015.

The London Project completed the demolition work of the existing
structure in April 2015 and commenced construction work in May 2015.
The foundation works are in progress now, and the development of this
project is expected to be completed in 2020.

JOINT VENTURE PLATFORM IN CONTINENTAL
EUROPE AND MADRID PROJECT, SPAIN

In June 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK
to establish a joint venture platform in Continental Europe with a total
capital commitment of HK$12.5 billion, in which the Company holds
60% and Wanda HK 40%, for the joint acquisition and development of
suitable real property projects in Continental Europe.

On the same day, the Company and Wanda HK acquired the Madrid
Project in Spain through this joint venture platform. The planned total
gross floor area of the project is approximately 90,000 sg.m.. Currently,
the Company and Wanda HK are making a comprehensive assessment
of the project plan.

JOINT VENTURE PLATFORM IN THE AMERICAS
AND CHICAGO PROJECT, AMERICA

In July 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK to
establish a joint venture platform in the Americas with a total capital
commitment of HK$10 billion, in which the Company holds 60% and
Wanda HK 40%, for the joint acquisition and development of suitable
real property projects in the Americas.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015
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. On the same day, through Wanda Chicago, a wholly owned subsidiary
of this joint venture platform, the Company and Wanda HK entered into
(i) the Formation and Contribution Agreement with Magellan Parcel C/
D LLC (“Magellan”) and Lakeshore East LLC; and (ii) the Operating
Agreement with Magellan to jointly develop the Chicago Project in which
Wanda Chicago holds 90% and Magellan holds 10% of such joint
venture.

The planned total gross floor area of the Chicago Project is
approximately 176,000 sg.m.. It is located in the heart of Chicago,
adjacent to Millennium Park and Chicago CBD. Many of the well-
known destinations are within walking distance of the project, such
as the Theatre District, Museum Campus and Michigan Avenue. This
is the last unbuilt site within the Lakeshore East area with excellent
geographic location. The project is expected to be developed into a
350-meter, 93-story five-star hotel (with estimated 193 rooms) and
high-end condominiums, which will be Chicago’s third highest building
upon completion and a new landmark in Chicago. Pre-sale of high-end
condominiums portion commenced in September 2015, and 130 units
were pre-sold up to the end of 2015. The Chicago Project is expected to
obtain the planning approvals and complete settlement in the first half of
2016, and commence construction work in July 2016. The development
of this project is expected to be completed in 2020.

JOINT VENTURE PLATFORM IN AUSTRALIA AND
GOLD COAST JEWEL PROJECT, AUSTRALIA

In August 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK
to establish a joint venture platform in Australia with a total capital
commitment of HK$12.5 billion, in which the Company holds 60% and
Wanda HK 40%, for the joint acquisition and development of suitable
real property projects in Australia.

On the same day, through Wanda Australia Commercial, a wholly owned
subsidiary of this joint venture platform, the Company and Wanda HK
entered into the Subscription and Shareholders Agreement with Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd (“DWCP”), Mr. Li (a shareholder
of Jewel Project company) and Jewel Project company. After completion
of the subscription under the agreement, the Jewel Project company is
now owned by Wanda Australia Commercial and Mr. Li, as to 55% and
45% respectively, for the joint development of the Jewel Project in the
Gold Coast.
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The planned total gross floor area of the Jewel Project is approximately
144,000 sg.m.. It is located in the heart of the Gold Coast city center
— the Surfers Paradise, and is the only five-star hotel and apartment
project approved to be erected directly adjacent to beaches in the Gold
Coast. It is comprised of three high-rise tower buildings of which one will
be a five-star hotel, and the other two luxury apartments for sales. The
project will become a city landmark in the Gold Coast upon completion.

The project obtained the approval for the development plan in December
2014, completed the demolition work of the existing structure and
commenced construction work in March 2015. Pre-sale of luxury
apartments portion commenced in September 2015, and 92 units
were pre-sold up to the end of 2015. The development of this project is
expected to be completed in 2019.

SYDNEY PROJECT, AUSTRALIA

After the acquisition of the Jewel Project, on 23 January 2015 and 4
March 2015, the Company and Wanda HK, through Wanda One, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the joint venture platform in Australia under
the Master Australia JV Agreement, entered into agreements to acquire
the second premium project in Australia — the Sydney Project.

The Sydney Project is located in Sydney’s Central Business District, a
key commercial center and a prime area for development. The project
is expected to be redeveloped into a 185 meter high tower mixed-used
complex comprising hotel, residential and retail areas, with a planned
total gross floor area of approximately 98,300 sg.m.. The project will
become a new city landmark in Sydney upon completion. It is expected
that the approval for the development plan will be obtained in early 2017
and demolition of the existing structure will commence in the first half
of the year. Pre-sale will commence in 2017 and construction work will
commence in 2018. The development of this project is expected to be
completed in 2021.

WANDA PLAZA, GUILIN, THE PRC (“GUILIN
PROJECT")

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land
in Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda
HK in the form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and
Wanda HK 49% of the joint venture company, respectively. The project
is located in the central area of Guilin High-tech Zone, with planned total
gross floor area of approximately 330,000 sg.m., including 153,000
sqg.m. of shopping mall and 177,000 sg.m. of retail, residential and other
properties for sale.
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The construction work of this project commenced in May 2014. The
shopping mall obtained various procedures of government acceptance
in August 2015, and opened on 12 September 2015. With satisfactory
commercial leases and operating conditions, the shopping mall
has become a supreme landmark business centre in Guilin. Various
government acceptance for sales of properties were obtained in
November 2015, and properties were delivered to owners since early
December.

HENGLI CITY, FUZHOU, THE PRC

The total gross floor area of Hengli City is approximately 242,000 sg.m..
The project is a residential, office and retail complex located in Fuzhou,
the PRC. As of 31 December 2015, the floor area of its remaining
properties was approximately 87,200 sg.m., and the majority of the office
and car park units were leased. The commercial portion was fully leased
to Wangfujing Department Store. In 2015, total rental income at Hengli
City amounted to approximately HK$103,575,000, providing stable
cash flow to the Company. At the same time, revenue of approximately
HK$54,247,000 was generated from the sales of residential units and
car park units.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, with support from our parent, DWCP, the Group
will continue to focus on international gateway cities which attract
a significant number of tourists, business travellers and a growing
trend of international tourists. The Group will actively participate in the
investment, development and operation of mixed-use property projects
with a focus on hotel assets. The Group will steadily develop the existing
projects, whereas the residential component will be sold as scheduled
if market conditions are favourable. The Group will continue to hold the
commercial component and hotel assets for investment purpose, and
have the hotels operated under Wanda brands (the existing brands
include but are not limited to Wanda Vista, Wanda Reign and Wanda
Realm). The Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment
opportunities, further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance
the Group’s profitability, and maximize return for its shareholders.
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REVENUE AND RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 was
approximately HK$2,176.7 million. Compared to the revenue of
HK$185.8 million for the corresponding period in 2014, the significant
increase was mainly due to i) an increase in property sales revenue
predominantly from the Guilin Project, which generated revenue of
approximately HK$1,868.5 million for 2015; and ii) an increase in rental
income of approximately HK$98.3 million from the Sydney Project, which
was acquired in 2015.

Revenue of HK$1,922.7 million, HK$229.7 million and HK$24.3 million
was derived from the sales of properties, property leasing and property
management service for the year ended 31 December 2015 respectively.

The Group manages its businesses by projects in different geographical
locations. As set out in note 4 to the financial statements, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely the PRC segment and the overseas
segment.

The PRC market remained stable during the year ended 31 December
2015. The Guilin Project, which was completed during the year,
contributed HK$1,896.3 million in revenue to the PRC segment. The
total revenue and the gross profit from the PRC segment was increased
from HK$185.8 million to HK$2,078.4 million and HK$128.6 million to
HK$1,186.6 million from year ended 31 December 2014 to the year
ended 31 December 2015, respectively.

The overseas market was confronted with market changes and
challenges during the year ended 31 December 2015 and the Group
acquired the Sydney Project during the year. Rental income is generated
from the existing building structure of the Sydney Project before the
start of the redevelopment plan in 2017. Revenue and gross profit
generated from this project during the year ended 31 December 2015
were HK$98.3 million and HK$75.1 million, respectively. All projects in
this segment were under the development phase in both years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015, no revenue and gross profit were generated.
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The Group’s loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
was approximately HK$262.7 million (2014: HK$176 million). The
increase was mainly due to i) write-down of inventories of approximately
HK$216.6 million and impairment of construction in progress of
approximately HK$216.6 million in the Madrid Project, i) an increase in
finance costs of approximately HK$170.4 million resulting from financing
of overseas projects, iii) an increase in income tax of approximately
HK$595.5 million, which was partly set off by iv) an increase in gross
profit of HK$1,133.1 million mainly due to the increase in revenue from
property sales at the Guilin Project, v) an exchange gain of approximately
HK$136.2 million, and vi) a net valuation gain on investment properties of
approximately HK$15.4 million in 2015, mainly from a fair value gain on
the Guilin Project, as compared to a net valuation loss of approximately
HK$121.2 million in 2014.

NET ASSETS AND EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group recorded total assets and total
liabilities of approximately HK$15,408 million and HK$12,508.9 million
respectively. The Group had net assets of approximately HK$2,899.1
million as at 31 December 2015 as compared to approximately
HK$3,478.3 million as at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2015,
the equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately HK$2,188.9 million as compared to HK$2,769.1 million
as at 31 December 2014.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$2,969 million as at 31 December 2015 as compared with
HK$2,186.8 million as at 31 December 2014. About 50%, 29% and 2%
of the cash and bank balances were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
Great British Pound (“GBP”) and Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”) respectively.
The remaining 19% was denominated in Australian Dollar (“AUD”), Euro
(“EUR”) and United States Dollar (“USD”). As at 31 December 2015, the
current ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by dividing current assets
by current liabilities, was 1.38 as compared with 2.01 as at 31 December
2014. The gearing ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by dividing net
debts by the aggregate of net debts and total equity, was 67.0% as at
31 December 2015 as compared with 46.9% as at 31 December 2014.
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BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings from financial institutions
of approximately HK$2,890.4 million as at 31 December 2015
(31 December 2014: HK$1,583.6 million). These borrowings were
denominated in RMB, USD and GBP. Approximately 53% of these
borrowings are repayable within one year. The rest represents bank
loans of HK$1,350.6 million which are repayable after one year.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings from related parties of
approximately HK$330.7 million as at 31 December 2015 (31 December
2014: HK$225 million). These borrowings were denominated in RMB
and HK$. Approximately 43% of these borrowings are repayable
within one year. The rest represents borrowings from a related party of
HK$189.2 million which are repayable after one year.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings from an intermediate holding
company of approximately HK$2,543.2 million as at 31 December
2015 (81 December 2014: HK$1,276 million). These borrowings were
denominated in GBP and AUD and were repayable from 2018 to 2025.
The Group also had non-interest-bearing borrowings from the same
intermediate holding company of approximately HK$3,086.6 million
of which HK$683.8 million were denominated in USD, HK$1,131.6
million in EUR and HK$1,271.2 million in AUD as at 31 December 2015.
The borrowings denominated in USD are repayable in 2017 and the
borrowings denominated in EUR and AUD are repayable in 2019.

As the Group continues to acquire and develop suitable property
projects, different financing sources, including debt, bank loan,
and equity, will be explored. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
contracted commitment for capital expenditure is approximately
HK$1,712.2 million.
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As disclosed in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
dated 31 December 2014, the Company completed a rights issue
in 2014 which raised net proceeds of approximately HK$2,450.3
million. Part of the proceeds had been used in 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2015, and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$31.4 million had been used as general
working capital and other general corporate purposes. The Directors
confirm that, as at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds from
the rights issue had been applied in accordance with the intended uses
as described in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 December
2013 without material changes.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURE

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB, GBP, USD, EUR
and AUD. The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC, the United Kingdom, the United States of America (the “USA”),
Spain and Australia are RMB, GBP, USD, EUR and AUD respectively and
they do not have significant monetary assets or liabilities denominated
in currencies other than their respective functional currencies. The
functional currency of the Group’s other subsidiaries is HK$. The Group
is exposed to currency risk primarily through loans that are denominated
in GBP, USD, EUR and AUD respectively. The Group maintains a
conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure management.
During the period, the Group did not use any financial instruments
to hedge foreign currency exposure and the Group did not have any
hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2015.

During the period, the Group had interest-bearing borrowings from
financial institutions, related parties and an intermediate holding
company. Accordingly, the Group’s cost of borrowing was affected
by changes in interest rates. As at 31 December 2015, about 55.3%
of the interest-bearing borrowings of HK$5,764.3 million were on
a floating rate basis, of which HK$1,373.3 million were loans from
an intermediate holding company. The remaining interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$2,577 million were on fixed interest rate basis. During
the year, the Group had monitored the suitability and cost efficiency
of hedging instruments and had considered a mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings in order to manage interest rate risks. The Group will
prudently consider entering into currency and interest rate hedging
arrangements to minimise such exposures if and when appropriate.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group pledged certain of its building
held for own use, prepaid land lease payments, investment properties,
completed properties for sales and restricted bank deposits to financial
institutions in the PRC to secure the loans of approximately HK$502
million granted by these financial institutions. The aggregate carrying
value of these building held for own use, prepaid land lease payments,
investment properties, completed properties for sales and restricted
bank deposits as at 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$8.4 million, HK$19 million, and HK$1,256 million, HK$9.6 million
and HK$8.6 million respectively. Besides, the Group also pledged the
share of Wanda Madrid Development, S.L. to a financial institution in the
PRC to secure a loan of approximately HK$1,240 million granted by this
financial institution.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

There are no changes in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had provided guarantees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$652 million to banks in favour
of its customers in respect of mortgaged loans provided by the banks
to these customers for their purchase of the Group’s properties. Each
of these guarantees would be released upon the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

On 28 January 2015, the Company and Wanda HK entered into a
joint venture agreement in relation to the establishment of Wanda One
Sydney Pty Ltd, which acquired the Sydney Project in 2015. By virtue
of the terms of the joint venture agreement, Wanda One Sydney Pty Ltd
is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group had
no disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies during the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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" EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had around 325 full time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United
Kingdom, Spain, Australia and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries. Performance
bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
included insurance and medical cover, subsidized educational and
training programs.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the matters outlined elsewhere in this report, there have
been no matters that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date
which have significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group’s
operations, results or state of affairs.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 61, has been a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board since July 2013. He has also been an Executive
Director of DWCP since December 2009 and the Chairman of the board
of directors of DWCP since December 2012. He is also a Director and
the President of Dalian Wanda Group and the Chairman of Wanda
Cultural Group. From December 2009 to December 2012, he was the
President of DWCP. Before joining the Company in December 2009,
Mr. Ding served in various positions of Dalian Wanda Group, including
President, Chief Executive Officer and Vice President.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University
of China (FFEI AR KE) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (F Bl #2258 T 12482 7))
in August 1997.

Mr. Qi Jie, aged 50, has been a Non-executive Director since July 2013.
Since December 2012, he has been an executive director and president
of DWCP. He currently also serves as a director of Dalian Wanda Group.
Before joining Dalian Wanda Group in April 2000, he held various
positions in DWCP, including chief executive officer, vice president,
general manager of the Southern Project Management Center (5578 B
EIEALY), assistant president and general manager of the cost control
department.

Mr. Qi graduated with a master’s degree in philosophy from Dalian
University of Technology (REIETKE) in April 1991. Mr. Qi was
authorized as a Certified Public Accountant by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC (R EIBAELER) in April 1998 and a Certified Tax Agent by
the Bureau of Human Resources of Dalian (now the Bureau of Human
Resources and Social Security of Dalian (K& A 71 & BAL S RER))
in May 2000.
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Mr. Qu Dejun, aged 52, has been a Non-executive Director since July
2013. From December 2012 to November 2015, he was an executive
director of DWCP, and was redesignated as a non-executive director of
DWCP. He has been the president of Wanda Finance Group Co., Ltd.
(BESREBARAR) and the chairman of Wanda Internet Financial
Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BZ LB A< @R % (L8 BRAQF)
since October 2015. He has also been an assistant to the president of
DWCP and the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group. Before he joined
DWCP in September 2002, Mr. Qu had served as the chief financial
officer in Dalian Fortune Investment Corp., Ltd (KiEZERIMEBIRE AR
2 7)) and a chief officer of Dalian Bureau of Foreign Trade and Economy
RETEIMEBEEHEZEE).

Mr. Qu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics (SR 1L 874 K2 in July 1986, and a
master’s degree from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
in November 1999.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Chaohui, aged 43, has been an Executive Director since July
2013. He has also been the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group since
January 2015 and a non-executive director of DWCP since January
2016. Mr. Liu served in various positions in Dalian Wanda Group,
including as the general manager of the investment department, the
assistant to the president and the general manager of the investment
and securities department, a senior assistant to president and a general
manager of the investment management centre, and the chief financial
officer. Also, he served as the secretary of the board of directors and
the general manager of the offshore property centre of DWCP. He was
a director of AMC Entertainment Holding, Inc. in America from August
2012 to September 2015. Before he joined Dalian Wanda Group in
2002, Mr. Liu worked with China Construction Bank, Xiamen Branch,
from September 1996 to August 2001.

Mr. Liu holds a doctorate degree in management science from Xiamen
University (EP9A2) and is a non-practising accountant accredited by
The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (2 Bl 1 & &1+ Ali 17
A
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Jipeng, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since July 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive director of DWCP from December 2009 to January 2016. Mr.
Liu has 30 years of experience in economic and corporate research.
Mr. Liu serves as the chief, professor and doctoral tutor of the Capital
Research Centre of the China University of Political Science and Law
(FFRBUAKREE KRS @IFEE) since 2009, and as a vice chairman
of the China Enterprise Reform and Development Society (FFE{>2
BRI E) since 2012. He is also a postgraduate tutor at the
Postgraduate Department of the Research Institute for Fiscal Science of
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (/R [ 87 B3 B BR L2 7H 5 ot 9t A= F)
since 2003. Mr. Liu is currently an independent non-executive director of
China Oceanwide Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0715).

Mr. Liu graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from the
Beijing School of Economics (AL R4S EZET) in July 1983 and a master’s
degree in Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (F
B+t 2 %HE2865) in July 1986.

Dr. Xue Yunkui, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since July 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive Director of DWCP from December 2009 to January 2016. Dr.
Xue has 30 years of experience in accounting research and practice.
He serves as the associate dean/professor in accounting of the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business ()T E2f5x), the vice president of
the Shanghai National Accounting Institute (/8B &512467) from
2000 to 2002, and a post-doctorate fellow at the School of Accounting
of the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (/88 & AZEgE
5FE265%) from 1996 to 1998.

Dr. Xue served as an independent director for Shanghai Shentong
Metro Co., Ltd. (L/8HEHERHBR AT, a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600834) since 2011, and
an independent director for Shanghai Baosight Software Co., Ltd. (=
BEEEHIRMDAERZAT, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600845) since July 2013.
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Dr. Xue graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics from Sichuan
Finance Institute (9118482287, now renamed as the Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics (FAFGEI4€ A E2) in July 1984. He
received a Ph.D. from the Southwest Agriculture University (7573 23
K now renamed as Southwest University (FAEIAE2) in June 1995
and completed postdoctorate research in accounting with the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/&8 £ A E2) in July 1999.

Mr. Zhang Huagiao, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since September 2014. He is the Chairman of China Smartpay
Group Holdings Limited (previously known as Oriental City Group
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8325).

Mr. Zhang is also an independent non-executive director of Yancoal
Australia Limited (stock code: YAL), a company listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange, since April 2014. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Fosun International Limited (stock code: 656), Luye
Pharma Group Ltd. (stock code: 2186), Zhong An Real Estate Limited
(stock code: 672), China Huirong Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
1290), Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 3380)
and Sinopec Yizheng Chemical Fibre Company Limited (stock code:
1033), and a non-executive director of Boer Power Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1685), all of which are companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
From June 1999 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang worked with UBS Securities
Asia Limited, ultimately becoming the managing director and co-head
of the China research team. Between March 2006 and September
2008, Mr. Zhang worked with Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock
code: 604), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as its
chief operating officer. From September 2008 to June 2011, Mr. Zhang
worked with UBS AG (Hong Kong branch) with his last position as
deputy head of the investment banking department of UBS China and
managing director of UBS AG (Hong Kong branch). Mr. Zhang was an
executive director and chief executive officer of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, between September 2011 and April 2012.

Mr. Zhang obtained a master’'s degree in economics from the Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China in 1986 and a master’s degree in
development economics from the Australian National University in 1991.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 48, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is
responsible for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui
has over 20 years of professional experience in public accounting
and corporate finance. She is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
She is also a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Tse Chi Cheung, aged 36, joined the Group in November
2015. He is the Company’s Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is
responsible for the financial management of the Group. Mr. Tse holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from City University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tse
had held senior positions in an international accounting firm and
listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Tse has more than 13 years of
experience in financial management, corporate finance and auditing.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are property
development, property leasing, property management and investment
holding activities. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2015
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on page 4, pages 5 to 8 and pages 9 to 14 respectively. The
Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the financial year ended 31 December 2015 in terms of financial
key performance indicators on page 10. Likely future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s Statement and
Outlook section of Business Review on page 4 and page 8 respectively.
The geographical analysis of the group’s revenue and operating profit is
set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 39 to the financial statements on pages 5
to 8 and pages 169 to 178 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

A discussion of environmental, social and governance matters,
covering the Group’s environmental policies and performance is set
out in Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 35 to 53 and pages 54 to 57 respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators effectively
through effective communications. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with
all relevant rules and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company.
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The Company strive to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value the feedback from customers and have
also established the mechanism handling customer service, support
and complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality sustainable products and services. We
have developed included certain requirements in our standard tender
documents. These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour
practices, anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 60 to 63 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 8% of the Group’s total sales in
2015 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 4% of the Group’s total sales in 2015.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 40% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 16% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder, which to the

knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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" FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements,
is set out on page 181. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group's joint venture at 31 December 2015 are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are shown on pages 182 to 184 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Liu Chaohui

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Jie
Mr. Qu Dejun
Mr. Chen Chang Wei
(retired at the annual general meeting held on 19 June 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Mr. Liu Jipeng

Dr. Xue Yunkui

Mr. Zhang Huaqgiao

In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company and
code provision A.4.2 in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Mr. Liu
Chaohui and Dr. Xue Yunkui will retire as Directors at the Annual General
Meeting, Mr. Liu Chaohui and Dr. Xue Yunkui, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Liu Chaohui, Mr. Ding
Benxi, Mr. Qi Jei, Mr. Qu Dejun, Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui, is 3
years from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016; the term of appointment of Mr.
Zhang Huagiao is 3 years from 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2017
and is renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the date next after the expiry of the then current term,
unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party.
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" DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

Interests in shares of DWCP (Note 1)
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R -E-RF+-_A=+—H  REARFRE
&7 LAY ([ RG] ]) 5% 352 &
ZREMEFE 2 ELMATRERRE LM AE
BEFETRSFRHNEEST R ([FEFRID M
HEARRRELHERIMARAE (B
Pl BEEREZHEARANLR MERR
AE(EERLEFRPEGROIEXVER) 2 LB
Wz fEzs i

RAEBEHRBERD T 2ER
(Bf=E1)

Approximate

Long percentage of

position/ the issued

short Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director position of interest Shares of DWCP of DWCP

HRERE

RREEE BEME

[GE3::7-3 BEBRITREZ

EEpA BR/ %R 5 EEME RAp 2 Rz BREIL

Mr. Ding Benxi Long Beneficial owner 50,000,000 1.10%
TARBEE HE BmEAA

Mr. Qi Jie Long Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.22%
RS HE BHEEAA

Mr. Qu Dejun Long Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.13%
mfEE L& "R EmEAA

Mr. Liu Chaohui Long Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.13%
Gl "R BEmEAA

Notes:

(1) DWCP, being an indirect holding company of the Company and the H
shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3699), is an associated company of the Company under Part XV of
the SFO. The calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2015.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company did not have any effective share option scheme during the
year ended and as at 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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" DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2015, so far as was known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group were as follows:
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAEATH RAEAT
IR 15 % AR ERITREZ
BE/EB He/ Ke 5 HERME vl o BMAOB
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties Overseas
Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BENEMEGIINERAT HE BB A
(T8EEs )
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in corporation 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited controlled (Note 1)
EEME e NRIEHER
KREBRAA] (B7E1)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE e AZIEGEE 2 #e s
(H¥zE2)
DWCP Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
NEEEWEME e RRIEHER 2
(M4 3)
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
RNEBEEE A REEHER 2 s
(s 4)
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RARAF EARAF
IR 17 K AH R ERTREZ
wE/ A8 "R/ KR B4 EntE [igvileslrd -5 BYOBEI
Dalian Hexing Investment Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 5)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RNERERERR AT HE IREPEGDER 2 #ES
(TRESHE]) (M4 5)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 6)
FREMmELE HE MEEGDERE 2 S
(Kizx6)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner 297,460,230 6.33%
(“Mr. Chen”) and held by controlled
corporation (Note 7)
BREE L HE BamEa AR
(MBR5E&D) B EHEE
A (fFE7)
Long Interest of spouse 27,683,423 0.59%
(Notes 7 and 8)
e iRt
(MizE7 % 8)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 27,683,423 0.59%
BRI 22+ TR BEmEa A
Long Interest of spouse 297,460,230 6.33%
(Note 9)
HE fo B (FiE9)
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 10)
Ever Good Luck Limited IS~ EmlEA
(KtEE10)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
ey} ZFEA
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Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which
Wanda Overseas is interested.

Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested.

DWCP holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, is an
executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of DWCP. Mr.
Qi Jie, being a Non-executive Director, is an executive director of DWCP.
Mr. Qu Dejun, being a Non-executive Director, is a non-executive Director
of DWCP. Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui, each being an independent
non-executive Director, were independent non-executive Directors of
DWCP until 29 January 2016.

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares
of DWCP and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which DWCP is deemed to
be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, is a director and the president of Dalian Wanda
Group. Mr. Qi Jie, being a Non-executive Director, is a director of Dalian
Wanda Group. Mr. Liu Chaohui, being an Executive Director, is the vice
president of Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position
of 325,143,653 Shares, of which (i) 19,362,200 Shares were beneficially
and legally owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for
him by Ever Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (iii) 73,860,230 Shares were
beneficially owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 27,683,423 Shares were held by
his spouse, Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.

Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

Directors' Report
EEEHRES

GEX

(1) EBEBERAERANKABESH B
EHBBIRG - BURBAREAR (B2
G OME SR B RS ) 2 A RABBIAR (5 e B
B -

@ BEEEHABB=SZ BEMEREFR
RABEEHTRL - BHFERERRARE (B
EHEREERARRGEAEELTEEER)
2Bty RARRAR D R B A A A

@ REBEHENESFEB=N—8ETL
BEITRD - R ARARR (BEEE
W RERER AR ) 2 i RARRR G, $
BERZ - FRTEERESS IR AH
RERKEBENERECHITERRES
L FRTEEEALERARNERES
EWEZHITES - FRTEFHRELE
RREEEREMEZIFRTES - B
HITEFARBEEREEEFLHERA
BEERRMEZELIFDTES HEEZ
E-RF-A=Zt+NB-

@ REBESERBEBB=-7 " NEBERX
WED BTN - HUREARAAT (K&
BEAXMERRREETHEARED) 2N
LABBRO TR HEAED - FRTESRES
SIRTAHEERRNESEEE ZESH
BE - FRTEEERARERRNERERH
ZEF - PTEFIRBEERRNEEES
Bz B4 -

B RESGHFEBEB=D—RNEEEEECH
TG - BREERRARB (KESEEE
WRREET AR 2 i) KBRS
AR -

6 FRMEERFBB=D-KRESHDET
Befn - EEBAR RRARE (KES EFAR R
FEEPGEAED) 2 Bt RABRIRR O i E

<

Bl

7 RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H BRELEH
B A 325,143,653 B m 2 iFa - EF
() 19,362,200 KR N R E Em & L5 HAE -
(i) 204,237,800 % [&% 5 FA Ever Good Luck
Limited ([ Ever Good ) B3t F R AE#FH A
(iii) 73,860,230 % A% {7 F Ever Good & % %
A+ K (v) 27,683,423 B FA E AC B R WIE
ZHEABESEAARE -

©) BRWELRLREREEZERE -

BERERRARAA » T HFFRH



9 Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

(10)  The entire issued share capital of Ever Good Luck Limited is ultimately
owned by Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good Luck
Limited. See note (7) in the section headed “Discloseable interest and short
positions of shareholders under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions are disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company and Wanda HK, through Wanda One Sydney Pty Ltd,
entered into agreements to acquire the Sydney Project. Since Wanda
HK'is a controlling shareholder of the Company, it is a connected person
of the Company. The total capital commitment of the parties for the joint
venture arrangement is AUDB00 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.4 billion), of which not more than AUD360 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.0 billion) will be provided by the Company and not
more than AUD240 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.3 billion)
will be provided by Wanda HK. Further details of the Sydney Project,
which is a connected transaction, is set out under the paragraphs
headed “Sydney Project, Australia” in our Business Review in this annual
report and in the circular of the Company dated 13 May 2015.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had certain loan agreements with a company controlled by
Mr. Chen during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The loans from entities controlled by Mr. Chen, amounted to
HK$48,199,000 and HK$282,548,000 (2014: HK$225,026,000 and
Nil) that bear interest at 15% and 13.5% per annum, respectively, are
unsecured and repayable from six months to twenty-one months after
the date of respective drawdowns. Interest incurred during the year and
interest payable to related parties as at 31 December 2015 are set out in
notes 8 and 25 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Save as disclosed above and in note 36 to the financial statements, no
other transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EZEENRBIBEBoER

As at 31 December 2015, the interest of Directors and their respective AZE—RAF+ZA=+—H EEKESZH

associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:

Name of Director/

S8R AT BN ER [ S 75 (T EL IR Bk ) I AK

BIFHAIREER BT ER T HEAEST T

Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
BE BHRALE AAEH WA P 2 BATZEY
Mr. Ding Benxi DwCP Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
1.10% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
TARG A RESEEEME BRESBERKRRE WEMERE -
HE1.10% xS MERE - Mm%
BB R AR
Mr. Qi Jie DWCP Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
0.22% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
BREE NEEEERUE EEESERRKRE EEmEmME -
HH0.20% s MEMRE - W%
BRI E R
Mr. Qu Dejun DWCP Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
0.13% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
mfEE L& RNEEEBRIE BEEERRE - NEMEFE -
%H0.13% i MHEEE - W%
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: Name of Director/
associate

B HEALE

Name of company
NCIECT

Nature of interest in
the company
REATHEZZME

Directors' Report

EFEWRES

Business of
the company
EANCIPA +3

Mr. Liu Chaohui

SIFAE L4

Mr. Liu Jipeng

Blache s

Dr. Xue Yunkui

BEERL

Notes:

DwWCP

REBEREIE

DWCP

RNEBERFRBE

EH\\
F”H

DWCP

REEEREME

EE‘L
W

Being a shareholder
with 0.13% interest
(Note(1))

HHEOA3% R
A% R
(P E (1))

Being an independent
non-executive director
(Note(2))

EOEFTES
(HFE @)

Being an independent
non-executive director
(Note(2))

EOEFTES
(HFE©@)

fia -

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

=M -
MEEE - M
B MR EERR

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

=R -
MERE - W%
BB R

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

WEEMERE -
MEEE - W%
BRI EER

(1) Mr. Liu Chaohui was elected as a non-executive director of DWCP on (1) BREELEER T —R"F-—AZ+ThLBEEER

29 January 2016. RRNEBEMEMEZIFRNITES -

(2)  Both Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui retired as independent @ BB rERBEEERIYR T —RE—
non-executive directors of DWCP on 29 January 2016. A+ NWBRAREEEREMEZBIIE
WITES -

As at 31 December 2015, save as disclosed above, none of the RZF-—AF+ZA=+—H  BRLXAERE
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business #HIN - BRERHASEBRE AR TMERS

which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with B (N m B kR ) A S sl AT RERR AKX
business of the Group. BREEBTHEEEE
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all the INEDs to be independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.
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" AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired as auditors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2014. Ernst & Young were appointed by the Directors and
an ordinary resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held
on 29 May 2014 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. During the year,
Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s auditors for the year
ended 31 December 2015 at the Company’s Annual General Meeting
held on 19 June 2015 and to hold office until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LIU Chaohui
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture and
balancing of business risk. And it is also essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for deviations
from CG Code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 as explained in the relevant
paragraphs on page 39 in this report, the Company has complied with
the code provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2015.
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" THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2015. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Liu Chaohui
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Jie
Mr. Qu Dejun
Mr. Chen Chang Wei
(retired at the annual general meeting held on 19 June 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Jipeng
Dr. Xue Yunkui
Mr. Zhang Huagiao

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are
set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 15
to 19. There are no financial, business, or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

—  Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

— Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

—  Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such
financial statements.

The Board held eight meetings during the year ended 31 December
2015, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group, and to review and approve the
Group’s annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice is given for
all regular Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. In addition, one general meeting was held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and attendance of each Director at these
meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
Attended/held Attended/held
Exggmiy™ RERAEIRE
HE BT HE R
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Liu Chaohui G 7/8 0N
Non-executive Directors: EHITES .
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBERE(EE) 5/8 0/1
Mr. Qi Jie ERSAE 4/8 0/1
Mr. Qu Dejun HEE L 3/8 01
Mr. Chen Chang Wei fﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁi{
(retired at the annual general meeting (R=ZZE—RFA+NA
held on 19 June 2015) RITZBRRBAFRE FRE) 0/4 01
Independent Non-executive Directors: B IEHITES :
Mr. Liu Jipeng 24 E A& 5/8 0/1
Dr. Xue Yunkui BEEEL 4/8 0N
Mr. Zhang Huagiao KB A& 3/8 0/1
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CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other business engagements, Independent Non-
executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors did not attend the
annual general meeting. Please refer to the preceding table for details of
attendance of the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-
executive Directors.

CG Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. Due to other important
business engagements at the relevant time, the Chairman did not attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held during the year ended
31 December 2015.

General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 19 June 2015. Other than the general meetings, the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013, and Mr. Liu Chaohui was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company on 3 July 2013. Whilst the
Company has not appointed a chief executive officer, the duties of the
chief executive officer have been performed by Mr. Liu Chaohui, the
Executive Director of the Company. The Board considers that the current
arrangement is adequate in view of the size and complexity of the
Group’s operations. The Board will consider appointing chief executive
officer at an appropriate stage when the Group has increased the size of
operation.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.
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The Company has three Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the Board. One
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

According to service contract, term of appointment of the Non-executive
Directors is as follows:

Mr. Ding Benxi 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016
Mr. Qi Jie 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016
Mr. Qu Dejun 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016
Mr. Chen Chang Wei 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016

(retired at the annual general
meeting held on 19 June 2015)

According to service contract, term of appointment of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is as follows:
Mr. Liu Jipeng 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016
Dr. Xue Yunkui 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016

Mr. Zhang Huagiao 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2017
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination procedure
(the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and criteria for
the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company. The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as
set out in the Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment etc.), identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the
new Directors more detailed information on the Group’s business and
activities.

According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became Directors on the same day shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any
general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

According to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated
to all Board members and the committees are required to report back to
the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned
on pages 37 to 39 in the section “Board Practice” above, have been
adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2015 to, among other things, assess the
performance of Executive Director, review and discuss the existing policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the remuneration
packages of the Directors. The members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member at the committee
meeting are set out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

FA - ARFAREDNHEN TFESSEMNA
HEREFALTZHE  EREFMBXNINE
REE 2 HEEEBEE - F - HIEBES
MESLRBREEAMNE 2 5k -

EEZEE

EEECRUZEERES  BEFHEES
BERZEeNREREZEE  RZE8HUER
ELEE T B L BB 0 [ (BRI BgE S P e AN R AR
i) e REG B ERLEREREANF
WERT  URHAAXATEREFEXES
Bl MELZEGRAEFTSERLRELEZ
(HER)  BEFEERIBEFRLH(LEXF
STEEFIAZ [EFGHER| —HiFT) £
ATERTEEZBERHTRM -

FWEES

FHEZBEeeFEL AR - REE K%
—HFERRIT-REEEEE - U(HTERE)
HERTEREZRE RO MIREFRFZ
FENER 2R - A RE R ZH BB o HrE
REEZKEBUREKEBHERZREGSRZE
SEHITE -

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held
ZEESRLHK
Committee member ZEERE ) )
Mr. Liu Jipeng (Chairman) Bl s (EFE) 1/1
Mr. Qi Jie BEARAKAE 11
Mr. Zhang Huagiao R ST 11

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since June 2005 to comply with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members, including
a Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
with the chairmanship being assumed by an Independent Non-executive

Director. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient

resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent

professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if

considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

U

(i)

(i)

(vii)

(viil)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the group of which the Company is a member company;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors relating to any loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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: For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not directors are within the
following bands:

FrfazEEE (G8n)

Total remuneration bands (HK$)
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B EEEBKRE ZFHMN FIATHRE :
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Number of individuals

A"

HK$2 million or below 2,000,000 7T A~

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. In 2015, the Audit
Committee met two times to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and
the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June 2015,
discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation
to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2015
are set out as follows:

?’E)%J’E$E.ﬁ =
Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ(i&ZiE%%&Zﬁ%@ﬁ%:g
—RERNA=ZTHIEAREA 2R EZES - 82K
RNEVZEAN ] N EP BT  ZBENE LM - %
YMHFHRFEZEITIESHEE - X2 —1
F BERLZEGRENRENEHEZES®S
BZIEREIIAT

Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEERAH

Committee member ZEERE HE BT
Dr. Xue Yunkui (Chairman) BEESLT(ER) 2/2
Mr. Qi Jie RS 2/2
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RILRB A& 2/2

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG Code for
the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprised of one Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Qi Jie, Dr. Xue Yunkui and Mr. Zhang
Huagiao.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

()  to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

()

(x)

(x)

(i)

(i)

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to approve the engagement of the external auditor to perform non-
audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication quarterly reports and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have an effective internal control system;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditor’s management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditor’s management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter

under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent

professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from

management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice

every year.
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: Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2015 to, among other things, review
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, the retirement of directors
and the resignation and the appointment of the Independent Non-
executive Directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:
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—REFERIT-RZEEEE - U(HFEHE)
BREFE AR BRBLIIFNTEEZHE
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SR ZBERHINAT

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held
ZEEERLE
Committee member ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBGILE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Liu Jipeng ) ptes 11
Dr. Xue Yunkui BHESEL 1/1

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in June 2005. It currently consists of three members, including
a Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice
in accordance with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(i) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;
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(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

(v)  to review the board diversity policy of the Board and to make
disclosure of its review results in this report; and

(vi)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time by prescribed by the Board, or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
any applicable law or regulation.

Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. According to A.5.6 of the CG Code, the above board diversity
policy of the Company has been approved by the Board and adopted by
the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, related management
expertise and independence of directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent. It
pays particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so to ensure appropriate
independence inside the Board.
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" ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 58 and 59.

External Auditors' Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditor to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements.
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group A EIR 2 BRI B EAER
HK$’000

FAT

Audit services ZH R 1,021
Review of interim report EHIFER S 292
Other non-audit services HAbIEZ B RS 295

48

BEBERRERQF » T OFFRH



INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with limit
authority and, is designed to achieve business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provisions of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. The system is put in place
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives. The
Board has conducted review of the Group’s internal control system
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding listing rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Qi Jie, Mr. Qu Dejun, Mr. Liu
Chaohui, Mr. Liu Jipeng, Dr. Xue Yunkui, and Mr. Zhang Huagiao) have
participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant records
to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their knowledge
and skills through participation in the training programmes, which in turn
ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the Board.

Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
Company’s own website.
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The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s shareholders.
The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and personally
chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses.
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The procedure for shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director of the Company is also available on the Company’s website.
Subject to bye-laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to
nominate an individual for election as a Director of the Company at the
AGM shall, no later than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting,
submit a completed form of nomination to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination
submitted shall be treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall
be accompanied by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee
and a written statement from the proposed nominee consenting to
be nominated and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as
a Director of the Company. The biographical profile of each proposed
nominee shall include at least the following information:- (i) full name, age
and address of the proposed nomineg; (i) past and present directorships
(if any) and employment of the proposed nominee; (iii) the information as
required to be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and in particular, use AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.
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PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will
consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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In 2015, the Group has been committed to the performance of its
corporate social responsibilities to a high standard and believes that high
standard corporate social responsibilities are very helpful for maintaining
sound relationships between corporate and society as well as promoting
staff confidence. In addition to its focus on its business development in
2015, the Group has proactively undertaken its social responsibilities to
contribute to the construction of a harmonious society.

QUALITY OF WORKING ENVIRONMENT

The Group considers excellent staff to be a key factor for business
growth and sustainable development of an enterprise. Therefore, the
Group provides a sound and safe working environment for its employees
and pays attention to the balance between work and healthy life of
employees. The Group also encourages and supports its employees to
attend on-job training and further education.

The Group adheres to an open and transparent process of recruitment,
and provides a competitive remuneration package to its employees,
which is subject to adjustment in respect of the individual performance,
contribution of each employee, and market condition on an annual basis.
Employment conditions also include a number of other benefits, such
as medical insurance and retirement plan. The Group has a well-defined
promotion channel and proportion for its employees, and hire of child
labor and forced labor are strictly prohibited, with all employment related
matters in compliance with the laws, regulations and policies in the place
where the business operation is located.

The Group expects to grow together with its employees, and attaches
great importance to their development. In 2015, the Group offered
over 30 training courses for its employees to enhance their job skills,
and more than 80 employees attended these trainings. Other training
expenses amounted to approximately RMB200,000. In addition, the
Group allowed its employees to reimburse the expenses required to
maintain their professional qualifications, providing adequate resources
support for its employees to improve their expertise. The Group also
provides continuous professional development training to its directors
and senior management to enable them to develop and update their
knowledge and skills, including provision of updated information on
corporate governance and regulatory development and requirements to
them.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is a supporter of environmental protection. To enhance
environmental sustainability, eco-friendly measures were implemented
and practices for effective use of resources to reduce wastage were
introduced in the operation and management of the Group’s businesses.

As a property developer, the Group is committed to the implementation
of green building. In China, green building is to increase our conservation
efforts in terms of energy, land resources, water and raw materials and
other efforts in terms of environmental protection and reducing pollution
in the whole life cycle, in order to provide the general public with healthy,
suitable and efficient open space that is consistent with the nature, as
required by Evaluation Standard for Green Building ((4% 2 32 SEFHE1Z4E))
(GB/T 50378-2006) issued by the Ministry of Construction of the PRC. In
2015, the Group’s Wanda Plaza project in Guilin earned One-star Green
Building Design Certification granted by the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC.

In addition, the Wanda Plaza project in Guilin also uses Huiyun
management system to save energy in 2015. Huiyun management
system is one of the integrated plaza management systems developed
by DWCP. The system is an integrated system comprising 16
subsystems, covering fire-fighting, security, equipment, operation and
energy conservation. With the system, energy consumption by electric
and mechanic system is reduced.

The Group is also committed to maintaining the sustainable development
of the ecological environment in the course of project construction
overseas. The Group’s project in Gold Coast, Australia is currently under
construction. The sea sand generated during the excavation stage was
backfilled to local beaches after being filtered to help local municipal
government solve sand backfilling work. All hazardous substances
found during the project demolition and excavation stage were
removed by category, which obtained certification from the Queensland
environmental authorities in Australia.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015

FBIRIR

REBHIRFRETERS - RIRFTFERIRE
A RERR  SEEERREEREE L3
NRIRTUER » WHETTZIRENBEEIE - B IFL
BZRE -

EREMERRE  ASERNEITHEE
FohE GEEERERTPRHERDD
4 B AR B 2 SR FT (B 12 % )(GB/T 50378-
2006) - EESmERNTAREMERE - &7
- iUk~ BTN REREMRASR  BA
PHREERE - ERNERNERZERM - BEE R
FEEENEE - —T—1F  REBAEMA
SEEISE B ESBERTE M BER R
B[ —ERGEEER ] RE -

1518

Wt (o
oY W

13

S R-E—RF  EMEBERESE

EEF RN - BEFERAE
ROEMERICESREZ — BEHEN
B~ i EEMEEEEF16EERIIET
EGERETE L BRETHRERGNERHE
% o

=
-

s AEBHBEANEERIER R R
HERIRIRM A FHEER - ARERIFORARNE
BEREFHIEE BRI EERRT - REKRHE
FEERIZHMEDEBRTROAEZE WD H - &
B E O IR AT AR B T - S0IE B
& FEZEERBRERNEENEHIRER X
EFRAN R T E BRITIRRABPIRAE




The Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Methodology (“BREEAM”), an environmental sustainability building
assessment system in the UK, is a globally leading sustainability
assessment method for overall project planning, infrastructure and
building, which encourages innovative and effective use of resources
by developers. BREEAM'’s focus on value and efficiency of sustainability
enables its certified developers to usually create a sustainably good
environment and make people living and working in this environment feel
more comfortable. The Group’s London project in the UK is currently
under construction, whose construction is in strict compliance with
BREEAM’s VERY GOOD grade standards and requirements.

In addition, the Group also endeavors to take environmental measures in
its daily operation, such as disposal of work garbage by category; dual-
side printing to the greatest extent when printing documents to save
paper; electronic management and filing of drawings, reports, contracts
and other documents supplemented by paper-based approach; lighting
controlled by the Building Management System (BMS) for majority
of leased offices to save energy; and strong recommendation and
encouragement within the Group to use public transportation after taking
efficiency into consideration.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Working closely with suppliers, the Group is committed to achieving and
maintaining a high standard of openness, probity and accountability.
The members and employees of the Group are required to comply with
the anti-bribery and corruption policies developed by the Group. The
Group encourages employees and all persons who deal with the Group,
including customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors, to proactively
report any suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within the
Group, and rewards meritorious person, which is incorporated into the
internal management system.
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Any forms of bribery and corruption are strictly prohibited by the Group
in the tender process. Employees are reminded to avoid situations that
may lead to and involve a conflict of interest. The Group’s suppliers
are rigorously reviewed, and each supplier is engaged and appointed
by market public tender in accordance with the internal management
process of the Group or appointed directly as appropriate, with strict
internal audit of the process.

To maintain a fair and efficient business and working environment,
the Group emphasizes the importance of anti-corruption practices. It
is the Group’s policy that any form of corruption will not be tolerated.
Employees are prohibited to request, receive or accept any forms of
benefits from any persons, companies or organizations having business
transactions with the Group, and the senior management is required
to sign the “Declaration of Probity and Self-discipline” (BEZBEEE
=)). During the year, the Group also sought training resources from
the Independent Commission Against Corruption to assist senior
management and employees to understand corruption-preventing
practices and guidelines, so as to remind them to comply with personal
and business conducts.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

During the year, the Group’s employees actively took part in the
schoolbag donation initiative organized by Wanda Group to donate
schoolbags containing stationery to children of migrant workers in the
PRC.

Going forward, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities
to further incorporate the principles of sustainable development and
community enhancement into the business development of the Group.
The Group will concern more about the minority groups, strengthen its
partnership with charities and volunteer organizations and further nurture
a culture of giving within the community.
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To the shareholders of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 60 to 180, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

16 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEmk

Year ended 31 December 2015 B#E—T—AF+=-A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 38 7RI + A TIIR)

2015 2014
—E-RE —F—UF
Notes $’000 $’000
BisE Fr T
Revenue Wz 5 2,176,737 185,849
Cost of sales SHE A (915,078) (57,245)
Gross profit EX 1,261,659 128,604
Other revenue H b zs 6 19,789 13,114
Other net (loss)/gain Hih (&518) /W F 5 6 (269,990) 94,727
Net valuation gain/(loss) on investment & ¥ E{EWE (E18)
properties HER 16 15,433 (121,173)
Selling expenses HERX (107,098) (112,429)
Administrative expenses THAX (155,399) (124,941)
Gain on revaluation of convertible ARG AER
bonds redemption options EEESMNEG - 11,050
Impairment loss on goodwil EIE R EEE 18 - (12,433)
Profit/(loss) from operations BEER,(BR) 764,394 (123,481)
Finance costs BhE AR 8 (236,361) (65,956)
Share of losses of a joint venture DME—HEEETE L BE (26,666) (979)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLADER(B5E) 7 501,367 (190,416)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i () #HR 11 (522,199) 73,322
Loss for the year TEEEE (20,832) (117,094)
Attributable to: AN B IREN -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZSPN 13 (262,693) (176,026)
Non-controlling interests FErE A 241,861 58,932
(20,832) (117,094)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary ~ fFR A EBEBIFE A 13
equity holders of the parent (HK cents)  FE(E A% E1E (GB1L)
Basic and diluted EXREE (5.6) 4.3)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A2 ERAR
.%/T A é E LI& A
Year ended 31 December 2016 #E T —RF+ A=+ —HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 2B 7SN © HIABTHIR)

2015 2014
—ZE-RfF —Z=—mE
$°000 $000
F T
Loss for the year AEEEE (20,832) (117,094)
Other comprehensive loss Htt2EER
Other comprehensive loss to be Hig M EHRHE
reclassified to profit or loss FTABERRZ
in subsequent periods: HEMEmEEE
Exchange differences on translation BB INERS
of foreign operations BN ER (564,590) (357,124)
Other comprehensive loss AEEHAEHEEIR
for the year, net of tax (3MBRFLE) (564,590) (357,124)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A FE 2 HEEEEE (585,422) (474,218)
Attributable to: DT EEE
Owners of the parent BREIER A (580,216) (385,120)
Non-controlling interests IR (5,206) (89,098)
(585,422) (474,218)

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BTSN 3R

31 December 2016 R=ZE—HFF+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 38 #EBAIN + A TIIR)

2015 2014
—E-hF —F—UF
Notes $°000 $'000
B 5T T Tt
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - RE MR 14 3,469,052 619,547
Freehold land KA FERELTH 15 1,029,952 1,129,696
Investment properties "B 16 3,847,765 3,161,737
Prepaid land lease payments TE TR E IR 17 18,976 20,432
Goodwill EES 18 16,714 17,469
Investments in a joint venture R—EEEEZRE 19 509,988 601,747
Deferred tax assets EETIBEE 20 156,798 123,708
Total non-current assets IERENE ELE 9,049,245 5,674,236
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development EEY= 21 2,501,950 3,006,613
Completed properties held for sale HEBBRTIYE 22 312,128 182,414
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HAb W IR 23 575,603 1,073,992
Prepaid tax TEREIR 29 87 60,324
Restricted bank deposits 2R B RITIFK 24 10,737 83,208
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EY 24 2,958,264 2,108,615
Total current assets MENVEEMLE 6,358,769 6,510,166
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables BN A ENFRIE 25 1,860,468 1,003,422
Bills payable NS 2,148 —
Receipts in advance e A 26 568,861 1,445,354
Loans from financial institutions S RMEEBER 27 1,539,783 119,916
Loans from related parties BiEALTER 28 141,553 225,026
Current taxation BNHARN TR 29 486,272 448,557
Total current liabilities mENEEEE 4,599,085 3,242,275
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETFE 1,759,684 3,267,891
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBES
CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,808,929 8,942,127
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2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
Notes $’000 $'000
B 5T F T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Loans from financial institutions EEMEIEE R 27 1,350,612 1,463,642
Loans from an intermediate holding —EFREERATIER
company 28 5,629,832 3,451,423
Loans from related parties BiEATER 28 189,194 —
Interest payable to an intermediate e — AR AR A B FE
holding company 25 220,298 77,755
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEAE 20 519,866 470,958
Total non-current liabilities SEmEAEEE 7,909,802 5,463,778
Net assets BEFE 2,899,127 3,478,349
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BRAREE AELER
the parent
Share capital %N 30 469,735 469,735
Retained earnings IRER &= A (205,246) 92,613
Other reserves HAb 31 1,924,442 2,206,799
2,188,931 2,769,147
Non-controlling interests FEIER RS 710,196 709,202
Total equity RS 2,899,127 3,478,349
Ding Benxi Liu Chaohui
TR 2| zhAE
Chairman Executive Director
*E HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Vear ended 31 December 2015 BE —T—AE+ - A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 2B 7SN © HIABTHIR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLAAEEAER
Convertible Non-
Share Share Capital Special  Exchange  Statutory bond  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
iR

Rx  ROBE AARE  BEBE  EXGE  iERE  BEREE REE & FERER Y 4
$000 §000 $000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000 $000 $000 $000
iR i i i i i S T T T T
(note 30) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31) (note 31)
(Wsks0)  (Wskst)  (Bskst)  (Bakst)  (Bakst)  (Bakst)  (Bast)

As at 1 January 2014 WZZ-mE-A-B 285,591 51,037 60,264 53,544 363,111 60,579 (605,659) 272,032 540,499 805818 1,346,317
(Loss)fproft for the year KEE(EE) /5H - - - - - - T8 (76028 582 (117094
Other comprehensive loss TEEEMRESE:
for the year:
Exchange diferences on translation 1840 £
of foreign operations JERER - - - - (209,094) - - — (09,004 (148030  (357,124)
Total comprehensive loss rEERARELE
for the year - - - - (209,004) - - (176,026) (385,120) (89,098) (474,218)
Issue of share capital BIRA 85677 2,364,643 - - - - - - 2450320 - 2450320
Convertible bonds converted ERAAERES 98,467 83,681 - - - - (18,700) - 163448 - 163448
Declaration of dividends ERRE - - - - - - - - - (12,055) (12,055)
Release upon the fully conversion ~—— IABE AR ESE
of the convertible bonds a{El - (664,095) (60,264) - - - 624,359 - - - -
Capitalinjection from non-controling~ FEiRiER 2
interests - - - - - - - - - 4537 4537
Appropriation to statutory reserve fund  BEZEEEES - - - - - 3,393 - (3,393) - - -
As at 31 December 2014 REB-mE
+-A=1+-H 469,735 1,935,266 - 53,544* 154,017 63972 = R613 2,769,147 709202 3478349
As at 1 January 2015 R-E-7%F-f-H 469,735 1,935,266 - 53,544 154,017 63,972 - 92613 2,769,147 709,202 3,478,349
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ERE(BR) /&R - - - - - - - (262893  (262,693) 241,861 (20,832)
Other comprehensive loss TEEERRERE
for the year:
Exchange differences on tranglation ~ #E G
of foreign operations ERER - - - - (817,529) - - - (317,523)  (247,067)  (564,590)
Total comprehensive loss REEREFREE
for the year - - - - (317,523) - - (262,693) (580,216) (5,206) (585,422)
Capital injection from non-controling ~ 3EE TR &
interests - - - - - - - - - 6,200 6,200
Appropriation to statutory reserve fund BEZZFRES - - - - - 35,166 - (35,166) - - -
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%
+-A=1-A 469,735 1,935,266 =* 53,544*  (163,506)* 99,138* =*  (205,246) 2,188,931 710,196 2,899,127
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * ZERERP BIEHERE M BEARRRE I TE
$1,924,442,000 (2014: $2,206,799,000) in the consolidated statement of iRe B #E1,924,442,000 0 ( =T — U4 ¢
financial position. 2,206,799,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE =%
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B 7EBF4)

nV'.R/\IEﬁUILEﬂE‘E

—AF+=ZA=1+—HILEFE
BB TTAIR)

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—EF
Notes $°000 $°000
P& Fx Fr
Cash flows from operating activities K& EBELZHERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATE R, (EE) 501,367 (190,416)
Adjustments for: BT SIBERAE
Finance costs BB 8 236,361 65,956
Share of losses of a joint venture PME—EEECEZEE 26,666 979
Gain on revaluation of convertible AR ESHIE RE R
bonds redemption options iR - (11,050)
Interest income FEMA 6 (19,789) (13,114)
Depreciation e 7 6,915 11,957
Amortisation of land lease T bR ESRIA S 5
payments 7 590 519
Impairment of goodwill EERE - 12,433
Written off of other receivables S L PR W R IR 6 - 19,578
Impairment of construction in progress ~ EZ Ti2RE 6 216,585 —
Write-down of inventories to GFEMRZE T ZIEFE
net realisable value 6 216,585 —
Net valuation (gain)/loss of TEMELE (W) BB
investment properties R (15,433) 121,173
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEMREEE
plant and equipment ol it 7 12 3
1,169,859 18,018
Decrease/(increase) in properties EEMER L, (M)
under development 291,288 (2,175,602)
(Increase)/decrease in completed BIEREZER T
properties held for sales (#hn),E (154,610) 115,401
Decrease/(increase) in trade H 5 e WA I H A FE M GRIE
receivables and other receivables w, (1) 482,363 (1,074,214)
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in TEUEIE G A) /3 m
advance (860,675) 1,413,715
Increase in trade payables and B 5 e FE R E b e 5RIE
other payables 30 848,874 509,711
Increase in bills payable FEAT = ARIE N 2,240 —
Cash generated from/(used in) BEEE /(TR z2BS
operations 1,779,339 (1,192,971)
Taxes paid [=ANEAE] (373,064) (118,859)
Net cash flows from/(used in) REEERE (A2
operating activities RERETFH 1,406,275 (1,311,830)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/_ﬁ/\Iﬁlﬁ/Jle%

—AFt+-A=1+—HILFE
BB TTAIR)

Year ended 31 December 2015 &= —F
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 54 #ERAS +

2015 2014
—E-hF —E-UF
Note $’000 $°000
B 5E Fr Tt
Net cash flows from/(used in) reESEE RS, (FTA)
operating activities 2B &R 1,406,275 (1,311,830)
Cash flows from investing activities REFEELECESHRE
Purchase of items of property, HEYE  BEMKHEEEB
plant and equipment (260,402) (582,884)
Purchase of freehold land BEKAZERELT M - (902,245)
Purchase of investment properties IEEIR B % (3,364,805) —
Expenditure on investment properties WEYE T H (519,593) (542,718)
Investments in a joint venture R—EEErEZIEE - (31,990)
Advance of a loan to a joint venture m—HaETERTER - (630,761)
Interest received BUFLE 19,789 13,114
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEE - f%& SiEIEE
property, plant and equipment Z TS - 4,163
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SR HIERT T_/TM@ZQ\ 68,875 —
Net cash flows used in RETEBFAZREREFRE
investing activities (4,056,136) (2,673,321)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFBELZELSRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS 5IE - 2,450,320
Proceeds from new loans from SRIEE B ERFTSRIA
financial institutions 1,437,296 1,484,638
Proceeds from loans from —REREER AR ERATE
an intermediate holding company p0E] 2,242,024 2,315,562
Proceeds from new loans from BE A THTEE RS RIE
related parties 282,547 —
Repayment of loans from EESREEER
financial institutions (119,916) (85,214)
Repayment of loans from EEBAEATER
related parties (174,650) (25,142)
Interest paid BRFE (141,111) (180,043)
Capital injection from non-controlling FEFERRAR HRF &
shareholders 6,200 4,537
Dividends paid to non-controlling EATFEE AR AR R AR 2
shareholders — (12,055)
Net cash flows from RMETEEEZ
financing activities HEREFH 3,532,390 6,002,603
Net increase in cash and ReERRESEEY
cash equivalents EHEEE 882,529 2,017,452
Cash and cash equivalents FHzHe Rk
at beginning of year REFEY 2,103,615 106,436
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [E R & &) v 222 (27,880) (20,273)
Cash and cash equivalents R+t=ZA=+—-H2
at 31 December ReRBEEEEY 24 2,958,264 2,103,615
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Notes to Financial Statements

BA SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a EBEREERAERAR(ART]) A
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered RBEREFMRIZ2BRAT o NAF]
office of the Company is located at The Canon’s Court 22 Victoria 2 = it 9 = & {2 72 The Canon’s Court
Street Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. 22 Victoria Street Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda °
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred FRN - ARAIREKBRR (A THE
to as the “Group”) is principally engaged in property development, [REE])EERFEARLFNE([H
property investment and property management in the People’s Bl ) REIMEEHERE - MERER
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas during the year. YISEEIR o
In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), ARREZ([EF)RE ARAIZF
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda MIER AR ABEREMEZINEGRA
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), a RI((BEEN]) —FHRABRELZHS
company established in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate R Z AR ARBZREIERAR B
holding company of the Company is Dalian Wanda Group Co., RNEBESBROHABRAT - —HERH
Ltd., a company established in the PRC. 5 VAN I
Information about subsidiaries B ARER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RARIEZMBAR ZFFBLT ¢
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AN T
and business share capital EREI Principal
Name of the company MR, DRITZER Direct Indirect activities
AFER BRREEME AR AR HE i TEHEK
Amazing Wise Limited British Virgin 1,000 ordinary 53% — Investment
Islands shares of holding
US$1 each
EEBRIHS 1,000 [ &% wEERR
EE1ETZ
LB
Dalong Industrial Group Hong Kong $10,000,000 — 53% Investment
Limited holding
REEEEEERAA HE 10,000,000 7T wEER
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARAREBWBAR ZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AN TS
and business share capital ERES Principal

Name of the company MR ERITEZER Direct Indirect activities

AT BRREELE EESHTES HiE ik FTEXEK

Fujian Zhonglu Real Hong Kong $1,000 — 53% Inactive
Estate Development
(HK) Limited

TR RS Hh AE A 3 B 1,000 7T mex
(B%)ARAT]

Fujian Zhonglu Real PRC Renminbi (‘RMB”) — 50.35% Property
Estate Development 129,820,000 development
Co., Limited
(note i, iii)

TR AP R Hh E 7 2 H AR MEER
BRAA 129,820,000 7T
(B &E ~ i)

Fujian Hengli & Savills PRC RMB500,000 — 27.69% Property
Property Management management
Co., Limited (note i)

mMmEAE—KF H AR 500,000 70 MEER
HEHTEER

BRAR (5D

Fujian Hengli Assets PRC RMB7,573,126 — 53% Property
Management Co., management
Limited (note i)

BEENEEER Y AR 7,573,126 7T EX=gt

ARAR (ML)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

NAREBER @)

M D RE R ()

KATEEHBATY BT () -

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AN B EML
and business share capital ERES Principal

Name of the company MR ERITEER Direct Indirect activities

AT BRREELE EESHTES HiE D3 FEEWK

Wanda International Hong Kong $200,000,000 60% — Investment
Real Estate holding
Investment Co., Ltd.

BERRMERE e 200,000,000 7T REER
BRAA]

Wanda One (UK) Limited United 10,000 ordinary — 60% Property
(“Wanda One”) Kingdom shares of development

GBP1 each
B 10,000 Ak B AR EI (B MEER
LS A )

Wanda One Nine Elms United 10,000 ordinary — 60% Property
(UK) Limited (“Wanda Kingdom shares of development
One Nine EIms”) GBP1 each

HE 10,000 I AR EE MEER
15EE 7 ERR

Wanda Europe Real Hong Kong $1 60% - Investment
Estate Investment Co. Ltd. holding

EERUMME B 17T REER
REARRT

Wanda Madrid Spain EURS3,000 — 60% Property
Development S.L. development

i 3,000 7T MEERE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

NAREBER @)

M D RE R ()

ARFEEHBAAZFBOT ()

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AN TS
and business share capital ERES Principal
Name of the company MR ERITEZER Direct Indirect activities
AT BRREELE EESHTES HiE ik FEER
Wanda Properties British Virgin 100 ordinary shares 51% — Investment
Investment Limited Islands of US$0.01 each holding
BEEXRERRAA EERELES 100 Ak & AXE (A BEERR
0.01 57T 2 EiAX
Wanda Commercial Hong Kong $1 — 51% Investment
Properties Investment holding
Co., Limited
BERFEE S 17T REFERL
KERR A
Guilin Gaoxin Wanda PRC RMB1,108,484,000 — 51% Property
Plaza Co., Ltd. (note ii) development
EMENEERES [ AR MR
BRARE (KL 1,108,484,000 7T
Wanda Americas Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
EERMInE e 170 REER
REARIQTA
Wanda Americas USA 1,000 ordinary — 60% Investment
Commercial Properties shares of holding
Co., Ltd. US$0.1 each
EH 1,000 KRG REE TEER

01 ETTZ BB
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

NAREBER @)

M D RE R ()

KATEEHBATY BT () -

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered PN )
and business share capital EREIL Principal
Name of the company MR BRITZER Direct Indirect activities
IR BREREXBE =R B s FTEXEWR
Wanda Chicago Real USA US$10 — 60% Investment
Estate LLC holding
EqE 103E7T REER
Parcel C LLC USA US$13,385,707 — 54% Property
development
e 13,385,707 & 7T MEER
Wanda Australia Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd.
BERMbE i 17T REER
HEBRAA
Wanda Australia Australia 1,000 ordinary shares — 60% Investment
Commercial Properties of AUDO0.001 each holding
Pty. Ltd. SEM 1,000 R & REE RBIE
0.001 8T 2 EiBAR
Wanda One Sydney Australia 1,000 ordinary shares — 60% Property
Pty. Ltd. of AUDO0.001 each development
SEM 1,000 IR E{E M ER
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

These entities are equity joint ventures established in the PRC.

These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

Pursuant to a share transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) dated
22 May 2005 between Dalong Industrial Group Limited (“Dalong”),
a subsidiary of the Group, and Fujian Zhonglu Group Co., Limited
(“Zhonglu Group”), Zhonglu Group agreed to transfer 95% of the
equity of Fujian Zhonglu Real Estate Development Co., Limited
(“Fujian Zhonglu”) to Dalong, after which Fujian Zhonglu became
a subsidiary of Dalong. Zhonglu Group has since then been the
non-controlling equity holder of Fujian Zhonglu. According to the
Agreement, certain assets and liabilities related to an old project
commenced before the transfer were retained by Zhonglu Group,
the relevant risks and benefits of the aforesaid projects were also
retained by Zhonglu Group. Fujian Zhonglu maintains separate
books and records for this old project. As at 31 December 2015,
the relevant assets and liabilities amounting to $35,572,000 (2014:
$35,572,000) and $35,000 (2014: $35,000) respectively have
not been legally transferred. However, as the risk and benefits of
these assets and liabilities were retained by Zhonglu Group, these
assets and liabilities were excluded from the consolidated financial
statements.

Except for Wanda One and Wanda One Nine Elms, the statutory
financial statements of all other subsidiaries of the Group for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, or since their
respective dates of establishment or acquisitions by the Group, were
not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists of the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

1. REIREBRER @)

B RER &)
B -

EERANP BN 2 BEXE
SERANTERIZIEBED
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (“$’000”) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).
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I 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

74

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Al
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

Notes to Financial Statements
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

(@ Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee
contributions that are calculated according to a fixed
percentage of salary. If the amount of the contributions
is independent of the number of years of service, an
entity is permitted to recognise such contributions as
a reduction of service cost in the period in which the
related service is rendered. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.
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)., BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2 B BERREEZES (2
(Continued)
(b) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 b) R=ZZE—NFE—ABEMHE

BB REER —FE—FF
PE— —FRERCFEN
EHFNZERBY SRS %

Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that
are effective for the current year are as follows:

76

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria
in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of
operating segments that have been aggregated
and the economic characteristics used to
assess whether the segments are similar. The
amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required
to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported
to the chief operating decision maker. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies
the treatment of gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation or amortisation of

AIEER] - MANFREERE
CHEICFUINE

FEMEHREERES
SAFE S - BIEAE
RIEMB B REE
AIE 8RAMERAIRE
A7 BB IR B R
R HET - BT A
&0 BBV BR A R AR
A BbE S AR Y
ROBASEE © ZHERT TN
M ERRE X MR IR S
TEREEERREZR
AN BBE - %EE
RIHARETETE

BB ERF165
YFE - BEREERE
7 @ = % | 55 38 5E
JEEE  BEW%E - &’

revalued items of property, plant and equipment EREEARERLEE
and intangible assets. The amendments have EHEENEEAEBER
had no impact on the Group as the Group RETHITE S SRR

does not apply the revaluation model for the
measurement of these assets.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity that
provides key management personnel services) is
a related party subject to related party disclosure
requirements. In addition, an entity that uses a
management entity is required to disclose the
expenses incurred for management services. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as
the Group does not receive any management
services from other entities.

BIA - ARASEL
EEABABEAGTEZ
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REBVEZE -
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

() The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013

Cycle

issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to

a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that
are effective for the current year are as follows:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself. The amendment is applied prospectively.
The amendment has had no impact on the Group
as the Company is not a joint arrangement and
the Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.

HKFRS 18 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be
applied not only to financial assets and financial
liabilities, but also to other contracts within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable.
The amendment is applied prospectively from the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS
13 was initially applied. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(c) (Continued)

° HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that
HKFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in HKAS 40 which differentiates
between investment property and owner-
occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or
a business combination. The amendment
is applied prospectively for acquisitions of
investment properties. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group as the acquisition of
investment properties during the year was not a
business combination and so this amendment is
not applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Listing Rules relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year.
The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEEERESTTBER @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 DFEARE N RE RS BB
e ]

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

AEEWL RN ZEFMEHRRTER
AT B HRARE AR AR 2 $TaT A%
(BRI B BHRE LD -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BANBREEAZOR  2EIA°
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BAMBREEAE 0  REEEARET
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its RABEERE28% FEELEZEH
Associate or Joint Venture* (B (23 —%) BENED A
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the BAMBAEEAE R KEEZE: EFaH
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception’ BENBRSENE 12 A
(2011) REREENR 285
(B378)(=3—%)
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BRUBALEAE NS AFAELEERY
Interests in Joint Operations' (B3T8) Eilek!
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BAMBAEEAZ WS EESLRS
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRUBALEANE 1SR  KAEPAHNE"
Customers?®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative' BASMENEIR(BIN) AEd
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods BRSHENS16RR  FEFEREH
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation’ BerpplER gzt
(31%)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

EREENS 165 R

RE LEIED

and HKAS 41 BEGEAEMR
(fg37%)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BRSENE R (B BUiBdzsEny
(2011) Financial Statements' (Z2—5)
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of ZECFE-FRF SERAHHREEN
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs' ERIEENE LB

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

! REZE—RF—A Bk z&R

2016 1h 2 FEEMAR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZZT—N\F—A—HzZEFH
2018 1h 2 FEEMAR

8 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual 8 HR-ZZ—RF-—H-RBzz&

financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available

for adoption.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015
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)., BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EEMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest
in a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of
an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including
the reporting entity, are under common control of the same
ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both
the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and
the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to
a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the
HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a
one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS
15 to 1 January 2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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I 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements

in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial

statements. The amendments clarify:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items
that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements

that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the

statement of financial position and the statement of profit or

loss. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1

January 2016. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B
Reporting Standards (Continued) B EZER| ()
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle BB G ERIE16HE R E SR
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern ERIFE I8 (BTN BEABE
of economic benefits that are generated from operating FFERFE 16 BB ST ELE
a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the 385 A AR A - BDas AR B 4
economic benefits that are consumed through the use of the EEB(ZEEAE —HAD)EAL
asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used B4 7 Al 2 1 SRR B B =B %
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only RIEER AR o Bt - Wak
be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible TMSRARITEMZE  BE K&
assets. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. W EEEIFEFRNERL FAIAR
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on BB E - 2SS RAIIE
the financial position or performance of the Group upon A o BEIZEFETN T — R F—
adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not used a A—BHEME I gE RS Er it
revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation of BRRSRRBEEATMZE  BA
its non-current assets. EASEWARE AR ETEEIE

MBBEMITE -

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTTBEME
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELEZRE
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the EREERE—BEETH  HiH
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights A REIESIE 2T BRI EE
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the B BEFEEGEN o £
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, EHIBIRBE K EE —IHLHERT
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities HEZEH - RRESIETEEBE
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. EERE /TSI TR EL—

BEBEZRERFE °

The Group’s investments in a joint venture is stated in the AEER—HEEREITRETIEK
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s RS ARASED G EE
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, FEREMREEER - TiReH
less any impairment losses. AR KA TR o
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued) R—EeEbEIRE (&
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other AEESHZAEETENBIERZE
comprehensive income of the joint venture is included in the BREMEEIA TS BT ALR
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated R EiREeHMEEBARK o Ut
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when SN BRAEELENER WEBJJE
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity ?J HEE) - AASETEEER
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any B ERESEBRERE S 5
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement E’]Eﬂ """"" AE)REE o AEBBEESGE
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting P ERFRAREIRBF REEILEAR
from transactions between the Group and its joint venture SEDIEZE LR ERIREME
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in EREREERHCEEEERE
the joint venture, except where unrealised losses provide RRBRIBRIN o INIBRZ & & AT
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill EENEERREERZEE D
arising from the acquisition of the joint venture is included as EMIRE 28D °
part of the Group’s investments in the joint venture.
If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment INRNE S 2 IR EE B
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not NRIZKE » HEREE AR 2K
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be BESNEEPERE  AITE
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, HRBERETENE  2EEK
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint B EEIR R RS o TEFT ﬁ
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and HEMIBERT @ EREEEREHEE
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any RAIMEBEAZZ NS EHEERER
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or FE R 2l e e ZFE@BZ,”\E@/%
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control f‘fﬁﬁfﬁlﬁﬁwfﬂﬂ% BIRE ©
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds YNGR **ﬁ%ﬁ’@%’iéﬁ?&‘a
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss. 773k [F) 28 i o e ) BR TED <2 BR B T

RERENAABERDEMSER
EMEZ B EAEREERRT

TR o
When an investment in a joint venture is classified as held for EREEEZRESBERFEL
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non- Tl ERa BB REERES
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. SRAFIEM B2 IETEEE RARIAE
ERETIE o
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEEFTHRBE &)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

86

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

88

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

DNAEEE#)

AEERMETREAABROE
BUHFTEARBENKETX
EERAEREABRBAZENE
ERIERTIBREAZE -

FIE R BERAMBHRERTEX
BRENEENRABNERHOAE
B EBEMEBEANKEES
ASEIEAT AR BESHORE

£ — ERNEREEXBERN
AR IS A RE (CRE

BE)

FR— EREAAEEEM

lowest level input that is significant to the fair EEEARNAHE(E
value measurement is observable, either directly FoEE) xEERA
or indirectly D2HMEERE

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets FEREERE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual WIFEREDRR  HBATFHE
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than E(FE BEMBELEE S@E
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed E - BERIFEHEDE  FHEH
properties held for sale, properties under development, ME - REVENRIERBEE, »
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal HABELENEEARIRIN 1E
group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable BERAGE - EEMTRECES
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the TLAfGET - EEMAIKEISETIE
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use EXBRSEAEMMNFERER A
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined FERAARBERHERAR ZE -
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate Wt E R EEETERE - BRIEEE
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other WAEERRIRE EBIRNEME
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable EXEEARNRESTA - IS
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which SR - A el SR A EMENER
the asset belongs. TELEERM TUAERTE o
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount REEBBENEENRASERR
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing H Aol £ FERFERR o TERTE
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted BER @ [AsrARBESRERER
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that BERMEEESRERZIBEEE
reflects current market assessments of the time value of 5 R\ 2 s A B BR A A AR IR 4T
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment HEGRE - REEEBKRZREEE
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period RITIEEETB M n AT AR EAEH
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with FrEE R - BRIEZEEIAE
the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried BEYT  EEEERLT @ BIEE
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is EERERENEHREESFTER
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting BRIE e

policy for that revalued asset.
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B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEETTBEBZE®)
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FEMEEREF)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REMERR - HHEEEETR
period as to whether there is any indication that previously BTN AR R EREENE T
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may BFHEKAIBEE R o MIFEZZT
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable % A EISREE T AEHET © WH
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment LATETE B E R AT El & BB A (A ET
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there REBE - FAERNEE (BE
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the BRON)REREET AT E -
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount BEISEREREERNBEFEL
higher than the carrying amount that would have been REERREEE T IAEERN K
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no FES 5 GNRERIITE #H) - Z
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. BB BT 18 BB (Bl A B2 A BRREIRT AR
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the mk o BRIFZEETIAEHEET
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, ™ EEEEAT - RESERNE
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which B BEAENEGEESHBUR
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for BRIR o

in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties BEATL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — AR A BN [ A B - {5
%5
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @ ZARFE—ATHZALR
person’s family and that person BRZAL
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () PRl sk ks AR &
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEEHEBEATE
VAR
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AREENAEEGA
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; RIZEEBTEAR
or 54

90 BEBERRERQE » — T OFFRH



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEEERESTTBER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FEETTBEBZE®)
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued) BEAL ()
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (o) fHEz7 BRFE A T EM G
conditions applies: HEE
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZHEBERAESEAR—
same group; EEKE
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EERBAS—[EEE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow ZEE N A A E
subsidiary of the other entity); (HE—EHEEBHTR
IR =YNS DA EN )
BAR]) :
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy EBERASEAR—Z
same third party; =hHZEERE:
(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —EEBRFEF=FE%#
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; ZEELE  mB—E
B AL EE
VNG
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ERAKRSENEARE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or EEMB BB REE
an entity related to the Group; B A& 3R 2 R4
FEtEl
(v  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a v EBEBX@EAlZ A
person identified in (a); I b Sk R RIE S
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi) (@@ BRI 2 ATHE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEAEATENNAE
key management personnel of the entity (or of a EE(ESQARF)Z
parent of the entity); and FEEEBAE K

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it MAEBSRAERE &
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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)., BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTBEREME®)

92

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as

MEE -~ BERREBARITE

BERTIZASN -

BIRARANR R ET T E R AL AR E R
BES - W% BERREEREZ
RABEEBEE  RMEEERE
EERHSEN N Mt B ERE A
BB (M EREERA

YE - BB RSB HEB RERME
X I ERRE - BE
REEX HBRG ABmSR - &
EHEREANBERT - TBREN
XHEELAEE  REEREEH
RENE © W% - BB RRER

E2HNE

THER AFEEE

BERIERRERNEE - BF
R AE BE R RIRULITE -

FrETREGFT A ERFHAER
EMEEYE - BERREEE Z
RAZEEREFE - BUtmEMBZ
EETRERAERFHMT

follows:
Useful lives Residual values
AIfE AR BE
Freehold land KAZEREL M Not depreciated Not depreciated
W E AT E
Buildings BF 30 years 5%
304
Leasehold improvements HEMFERE Over the shorter of Nil
the lease term or 5 years i3
MHEAS 5 F 2 B E
Furniture, fixtures and equipment R~ HEREE 3-5 years 0-10%
3-54
Motor vehicles RE 5 years 0-10%
5%

BEERERRARAA » T HFFW



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual value, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents renovation works in
progress and is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Properties under construction or development for future
use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to
initial recognition, at each reporting date when fair value can
be determined reliably. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction
will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
reliably determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

REME

BREVMERFHERRAS KA
K,/ S EARIEE (I AR EEK
HEEMARBHITHER) 3L
EREEGBRETHE2 L RE
F(BREEMTENTEREDE
ERLIMEZEERN T < HERE
) 2t o ZFMEEARAK
(BRXZKAN)TE - TIHER
& WEMERAABERY R
BR ¥R & HIRA TR ©

EEMELARIFREMENERRE
HENBEAERREME - NER
SR WAR(EEENSEETE
REERMEBRIEAAGE
BREISHRA  RRZEAAEED
R o AR EBEEAASFEE A
EERENEBRRAAEEER
REEEASEERERTRAILL

BENE AR BEZBBFEEY
BFSEE  HAFEEFEZ A
%% -

WS EREYE 2 EEmEY
RBERLEFEZRBERP TN

BEERERRARAA » T HFFW



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Investment properties (Continued) REYE (&)
For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied MILEYFEREGAYMESIFE
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property ME ' WFEERIESFTRENET
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of ERAGBERAZEEERANARE
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an B - BAKEEREE RYMENY
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, XERLSIREYE  AEBEEHEER
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with HEFEHSRE[WE  BER
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment BB RITE | BTl B ER A5 52
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any FAR BPENRESEEAD
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the A EBERZBOEAERERE Lt
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation (% BEREZEARITE ]| T
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant MAVBER AR IEE - BFEHE
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from BREREYEMS - MEREEE
inventories to investment properties, any difference between BN AR EEEELHREELE
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous RE (=R IB R IER o
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
Operating leases KEHE
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of BEHEFRZ BRI B HER R
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for TMEREEAZEE AR EL
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets EHE - WAKEREAA - AE
leased by the Group under operating leases are included BRI A ER LA BE A
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the AEMBEE - AKEHE 2B
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or He TR EBANES AT ABR
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where xo WMAKREIAMEA  KEHE
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating Z NS TR EBARNEGSER
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the B -

straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Operating leases (Continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings
as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributed to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

REME (|

REME THRN T EERIRE
RIRRASIER - RN EMRZE
HROETER

fieiAE B IR AR £ 3 N AR R Al
SENB R2MEERELIRY
% BELERRETREBEHEERA
T RABTRAR

RERHMEHERE
PG TR KAt

SREER NI ERR DB/
REBEFABZRZEHEE &
RMEYRBER AR E ESRIRE
SKHETE B M E R 2 B TARDT
ETRENER) - REERIE
REAAAEBEN LEESREE
IR ZRAGTE - HIRAREE
FEAERRZ SREERID

A REBEEEEHNRFZH
(A EEAEEEZAEEZR) T
AR - —REBERR—R™
SREEIE—EPEARNE
EZEMEEEE -
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEEERESTTBER @)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESHBEBE®)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

98

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assets.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.
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POLICIES (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

102

(Continued)
Financial liabilities TRBE
Initial recognition and measurement IR BB R E

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIEEREHEE
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under i & IR TR R B BRI EUE
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. [Ewm - AR L EREREE o
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another EREeR A ERER—ERANLRA
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the BETRANGRER S —2RERE
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such B - B3R ABEZGEHREKREE
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition 5] AR MRE(E FTHAR AR 1L
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and BRREBERERFAGE A%
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is RSB EHETERRPER

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments SR T Bk

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the fir B BT A AI1TE M & AR B TER
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position e TS BBERFRE
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the ERFESIRAREREENEES
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on & AlepEENSHAEEEE
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities |iE - MFESEMBARARPE
simultaneously. o

Properties under development (EXELIES

Properties under development are stated at the lower of TERRYZE T IR 2N I O] 43R (B
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs, BEZRIEEZY - BIEIHAKA -
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and B - EERA - BEBRAK
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred ZEMFEERERBEEREENE
during the development period. The net realisable value of BN o TE YIS ] IR EE
properties under development is determined by establishing BIEAAER TEEREMEMEE
the market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed E - WHREEZRNES BXE
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs, ARGEEEBERTHRE A EA R
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the SEMEE o

valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(Continued)

Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total land and building costs
attributable to unsold properties. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management’s estimates
based on the prevailing market conditions, on an individual
property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination
is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the general guidance for
provisions above; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension schemes.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@ the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties have been transferred to the buyers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the properties is retained;

(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESTHRBE B

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The above criteria are met when construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the Group has
obtained the project completion report issued by the relevant
government authorities, the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers, and the collectability of related receivables
is reasonably assured. Payments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income derived from the lease of the Group’s
properties is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Property management fee income derived from the provision
of property maintenance and management services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 FESTHBRBE @)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In
prior years, final dividends proposed by the directors were
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

SN

ZEM MR TIAR R T 2 8E
EHREHETEY - ARBARE
SETHAG YRR MEE
SR AR A Z IR B TIAZY)
EERFE - AEEANERBATRCE
ZINEZZFIEZTBNRRZH
HE M 2 e B ERECER - LASD
BiHEc B EERARIIRES
HIRZ e S ERME o FHK
BE IR R EL 2 ZHIGNE
MR AR ©

mp om aw

ReEE B SBRAMELEZE
BN BaERNER - EEEER
R AREREBINER ZFREZ—
o2 EWIHEB RSN - HEEHEIR
BREMEMBRARTER  BEER
Rt eBRRER I BERARK D
EEMFRERL - ZFEWER
ZER ZREL 2 HIAR X MR
IRARRS REMEERA

BEERERRARAA » T HFFW



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. RBEHERSTTHER @
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measure in fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

2.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

0]

(if)

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BREFTTHE R @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued) H R &)

(iii) Classification between investment properties and (i) REVERGFEVXESE

116

properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by the management on determining
whether a property is designated as an investment property
or a property held for sale. The Group considers its intention
for holding the properties at the early development stage of
the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after its completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current
assets if the properties are intended to be held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of
the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value, while the properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to completed investment properties and are
subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below:

(i) Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at
fair value, which were revalued based on the appraised
market value by an independent professional valuer. The
fair value for completed investment properties was arrived
at by considering the capitalised income to be derived from
the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate, by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for the similar properties in the
surrounding areas. The fair values of investment properties
under development are determined by establishing the
market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs,
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable margin.
The determination of the fair value for completed investment
properties requires the Group to estimate reversionary
potential of the properties while for investment properties
under development, estimates on costs to be incurred and
future margin are required in the valuation.

The carrying amount of investment properties as
at 31 December 2015 was $3,847,765,000 (2014:
$3,161,737,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement, are stated in
note 16 to the financial statements.
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I 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

118

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2015 was $16,714,000 (2014: $17,469,000). Further details
are given in note 18 of to the financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a resullt
of the fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the CIT
provision to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have an impact on the CIT expense and CIT
provisions in the period in which the differences are realised.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BEREFHERMAET @)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) et THEEM (8)

(iv) PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") (Continued) (iv) #ETHBEHRTLHEE

) &)

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate RETE IR ERE - ANEBFMH
the deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the STAIHIR ST - WARIR AR R A B
relevant tax rate on an individual property basis under the BEERERBERE R EEER
relevant applicable tax laws and regulations. Given the TEEET =D HIE - ERE TS
uncertainties of the calculative basis of LAT to be interpreted FREN T IR ENAEEEAT
by the local tax bureau, the actual outcomes may be higher HEM  REEER - BERE&RA
or lower than that estimated at the end of the reporting BN SER T AR o MZEE
period. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is WA AR R YGRS
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such BAR AEEEE8er 288l
differences will impact the LAT expense and LAT provision in 7= SR T IS E R S R i
the period in which the differences are realised. AR o

(v) Deferred tax assets (v) EEBIBEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible ERAI B B 12 B B AR IE MR FT1S
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent R R IS R =R R
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available BEENREA - ERLATE AT
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax R 1 2 R K ) AR ) PR R A st
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement RELHIEEE - enes B8
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets AR = B HER 2R 5T R 2RERAS FE AR
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and BATSENREM SR - A5 AT
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning FEIEEE - DURTIEERAELETR
strategies. HEENSE °

(vi) Impairment of trade and other receivables (vi) EZREMERFCERE

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based
on assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment of trade and
other receivables requires management’s judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in the
future is different from the original estimates, such differences
will have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables
and the impairment loss/reversal of impairment of the
receivables in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BREFTTHE R @

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
fhEt T EEMS (#)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vii)) Y13 - BERREH AR F

(vii) Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of items
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitors’ actions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimates, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2.4. The recoverable amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment is calculated as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use, the
calculation of which involves the use of estimates.

(viii) The net realisable value for properties under development

and completed properties held for sale

The net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management’s estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions, on an individual property basis. The net realisable
value of properties under development is determined by
establishing the market values of the properties on an “as-if”
completed basis with appropriate deduction on construction
costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by projects in different

geographical locations. In a manner consistent with the way in

which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior

executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the Group has presented the following

two reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(i)

The PRC: this segment engages in the development of
commercial and residential properties for sales and leasing in
the PRC.

Overseas: this segment engages in the development of
overseas property projects.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment assets exclude the head office’s assets and
goodwill and segment liabilities exclude the head office’s
liabilities as these assets and liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
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B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

" 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEFIER @)

(Continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () PEE BEEREE#E)
The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is BfEsRE D EEH, (BER) 252
“profit/(loss) before tax”. FER [BRTA /ﬁnﬂ/ (B18)] -

The PRC Overseas Total
B s/ et
$’000 $'000 $'000
T T T
For the year ended BZE-Z—8F
31 December 2015 +=ZA=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers R B 4MNEEEF 2 Wz 2,078,406 98,331 2,176,737
Reportable segment profit/(loss) &9 30255, (EE) 1,432,728  (1,077,267) 355,461
For the year ended BZE-Z—UF
31 December 2014 TZA=+—HLHFE
Revenue from external customers 2R BN P < e 185,849 — 185,849
Reportable segment loss D EEE (81,066) (134,437) (215,503)
As at 31 December 2015 R-FE-HFE+=-HA=+—H
Reportable segment assets wEDEEE 5,815,932 9,501,661 15,317,593
Reportable segment liabilities mEHE AR 3,191,858 5,186,583 8,378,441
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-—NFE+=-A=+—H
Reportable segment assets WMENEAEAE 6,208,636 5,643,077 11,851,713
Reportable segment liabilities WwENEEE 4,092,551 2,429,506 6,522,057

122 BEBERRERQF » T AFFRH



4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFILER @)

(Continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) HEIH2z2WzE B BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REBEZHER
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—uF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment and mEDHMEFE K
consolidated revenue 2,176,737 185,849
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAER - (ER)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) &2 &R, (EE) 355,461 (215,503)
Unallocated head office and b AN b VNI
corporate results 145,906 25,087
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax #7& B i pla A, (E5f8) 501,367 (190,416)
2015 2014
—E-fF —E—uF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets mEDHEE 15,317,593 11,851,713
Unallocated head office and ROBBH R AREE
corporate assets 90,421 332,689
Consolidated total assets CEBEE 15,408,014 12,184,402
Liabilities b=§
Reportable segment liabilities wEDF AL 8,378,441 6,522,057
Unallocated head office and Ao BH R ATIEE
corporate liabilities 4,130,446 2,183,996
Consolidated total liabilities NN Y= 12,508,887 8,706,053
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B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFILER @)

(Continued)

(iii) Geographical information (i) WEER

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (i) the Group’s non-current assets (excluding
deferred tax assets) (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of revenue from external customers is
based on the location at which the services were provided or
the properties were sold or leased. The geographical location
of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the assets, in the case of fixed assets, and the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of goodwill.

Revenue from
external customers

TREIAR () NEERE SR
Fz¥aFkilNEEEREDEE
(TEREERREE) ([HEEIFFR
PEE ) 2B EER - KB
Rz Was < IR B TR
RERBXAHERHEDE 2
HEHTMIE ° FHEFRBEE
NEREENERVE (SLEE
BEMS ) RESE 2 ZE (3
BEME)ME °

Specified
non-current assets

REMBEF Wz EEFRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RF | ZTUF | ZE-RF | ZT-HF
$°000 $'000 $’000 $'000
T T Tt T

The PRC h

(including Hong Kong) (BEEE) 2,078,406 185,849 | 8,899,461 | 3,866,775
Overseas LN 98,331 — | 4,992,986 | 1,683,753
2,176,737 185,849 | 8,892,447 | 5,550,528

(iv) Information about major customers

(v) BEFEEFZEH

The Group had no single customer with the transactions
with whom exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: one). During the year
ended 31 December 2014, revenue from the major customer
amounted to $78,036,000.

BER

BE-ZE—RF+-A=1+—HI
FE AEEYHE(ZZT—HF:
—R) EEHEIT 2 R GRS EIK
E%@TO%Zﬁ_g)—i"@i:
T—FEF—_A=+—RHILFE
REEERP 2z 478,036,000

JL °

ERBRERDE o —T—OFFR



5. REVENUE 5. s

WaEERFRAHEENR ZBA - XA
T WARYDEERBA (BEFRREEBR KX
HA B S E AR 2 B R AT H0)

Revenue represents income from the sales of properties, property
rental income and property management income during the year,
net of business tax and other sales related taxes and discounts

allowed.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wasz T
2015 2014
— —mF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Revenue Yz
Sales of properties HEME 1,922,762 58,422
Rental income AW A 229,722 107,481
Property management income L ESREIGN 24,253 19,946
2,176,737 185,849
6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/ 6. HfthzsRkHAzb (E518)
] .-\-.
GAIN o8
An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and other net (loss)/gain REE 2z Hhlas R E A (B1E) A
is as follows: SFEEDITUT ¢
2015 2014
—E-RF —
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Other revenue Hihug =
Bank interest income RITHLEWA 19,789 13,114
Other net (loss)/gain Hit (&518) WA FE
Exchange gain R 136,200 109,531
Forfeiture of deposits from purchasers RN ERiZE 2,728 3,714
Other receivables written off as g CIR Nt g
uncollectable Hth el zkIE - (19,578)
Write-down of inventories to net ?Vhﬁlﬂﬁféi?:
realisable valuve ~ A[# B FE (216,585) —
Impairment of construction in progress ELI&/)EKTE
(note 14) (MtEE14) (216,585) —
Others Hith 24,252 1,060
(269,990)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BREADEF(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging: REBZBRBATER, (EEB) MR

THEBRER

2015 2014
—ZE-RF —=-mEF
Notes $’000 $'000
k=3 Frx Fir
Cost of properties sold EEYEKAR 858,608 41,085
Cost of services provided PR AR TS < PR 56,470 16,160
Depreciation e 14 6,915 11,957
Amortisation of land lease payments + HbFH & FRIE 17 590 519
Minimum lease payments under BLEMNZ TR
operating leases for land and buildings ~ BF&EHERS 18,826 9,220
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B
— Audit services — ZHRTE 1,021 900
— Other services — E AR 587 722
Employee benefits expense (excluding — EE@F IS (T 1E
directors’ remuneration (note 9)) EEHH(FIEE9))
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — e  TEREAMEF 71,683 63,584
— Contributions to defined — MERAHFRREE
contribution retirement plan YEH 2 #5% 6,029 5,892
77,712 69,476
Direct operating expenses BB e 2 IREMEESE
(including repairs and maintenance) 2 EEREERY
arising on rental-earning investment (BEHERRE)
properties 15,059 10,814
Loss on disposal of items of LEME - BEREHER
property, plant and equipment 2 [E518 12 3

BEBERRERQF » T AFFRH



8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BiE A

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: REBZREXRARDHTIT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-EF
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
Interest on loans from financial institutions 4 Bl & 7 F.2 139,376 63,841
Interest on convertible bonds AT AR ESF B - 9,602
Interest on loans from an intermediate  ~ AFERNEE 2
holding company repayable — AR A A
within five years BALE 150,273 69,797
Interest on loans from related parties B A TEZFE 37,275 38,258
Deemed interest on advance from lessee 45 A4 A 20 F 2 - 24
326,924 181,522
Less: Interest expenses capitalised into & : OB ERE R
properties under development RERTIEZ
and construction in progress * BRFEFHAZ (90,563) (115,566)
236,361 65,956

*

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 4% * EREAIREFENFA4%E6% 2B 2
to 6% per annum (2014: 3% to 6% per annum). LEER(ZZ—UF - BF3%E6%) &
ME °
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I 9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

9. EEHN

FRRE LR EEE R RED S
383(1)@) ~ (b) * (c) (kXA (# &
EEMRER) ROIFE 2 BB ESH
BT -

2015 2014

—F-1F —TIF

$°000 $'000

T Tt

Fees we 463 343
Other emoluments: Hipfie -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 286 R B ¥1E T 1,985 4,102

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIRR 18 34

2,003 4,136

2,466 4,479

128
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEHN @

Directors’ remuneration is as follows: E=EHMT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e EMER Bike
we ENEF TR FrMa st
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
2015 —E-AF
Chairman and FRERIENTES
Non-executive Director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TERBEE - - - -
Executive Director: WITES
Mr. Liu Chaohui ZEARE S - - - -

Independent Non-executive B 7 3EE{TE S

Directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng el 100 - - 100
Dr. Xue Yunkui BESEL 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhang Huagjao wBTE 263 - - 263
463 - - 463
Non-executive Directors: ~ FFHIITE =
Mr. Qi Jie BREE - - - -
Mr. Qu Dejun fhiEE L - - - -
Mr. Chen Chang Wei BREELE
(retired on (RZZT—h%F
19 June 2015) NATNBRE) - 1,985 18 2,003
- 1,985 18 2,003
463 1,985 18 2,466
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRN - BEESHENRBNEEAH
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2014: Nil). Bz 2P (ZZF—IeF « ) o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 9. EEFHFMN =
Directors’ remuneration is as follows (Continued): EEHMUT (E)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e R Rire
we EMER FHEIfR HidMaaEt
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fi F5 5 i
2014 —T—mF
Chairman and IEFRFENTES
non-executive Director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TERBEE - - - -
Executive director: WITES
Mr. Liu Chaohui ZIEARE A - - - -

Independent non-executive B IFHITEE

Directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng ElE ey 100 - - 100
Dr. Xue Yunkui BEREHT 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao wILBEE
(appointed on (R=Z—NF
1 September 2014) NA—BEZE) 92 - - 92
Mr. Ba Shusong EEREE
(resigned on (RZZT—mF
20 May 2014) FAZTH#T) 51 - - 51
343 — — 343
Non-executive Directors:  JEHTTE S :
Mr. Qi Jie BRESE - - - -
Mr. Qu Dejun thiEE L - - - -
Mr. Chen Chang Wei BRRELE - 4,102 34 4,136
- 4,102 34 4,136
343 4,102 34 4,479
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of them
is an ex-director (2014: one director) whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 9 and represented such amounts paid/payable
since his appointment or up to his retirement as director. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four highest paid
non-director employees (2014: four) and one ex-director who was
employed after his retirement as a director, are as follows:

0. EE&RSHES

hEREHERRE—RMNEESR (=T
—E  —RER)  WZEFMHFBEHR
MizEo - H2JRERZEXEEREE
EONRENER - FAR - HTEEH(Z
T—MOF: OB) Z=FHFEFREER—
ERERETESRRBZAEES 25
BiEEISEA T -

2015 2014

—F-1F —TIF

$°000 $'000

T Tt

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ 2Bt R E MR 13,416 12,389
Pension scheme contributions BIRE TR 34 118
13,450 12,507

The number of highest paid non-director employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BaFEEEEZHFMN FUATE
& :

Number of employees

EEAH

2015 2014
—E-hF —EF—F
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7T & 2,500,000 7T 3 2

$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 JTZ 3,500,000 7T 1
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 3,500,001 JTZ 4,000,000 7T 1 —
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 7T & 5,000,000 7T - 1
5 4
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" 11. INCOME TAX

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

1. Fri5H

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—-UF
$°000 $°000
FT T
Current tax BNHARE 18
Corporate Income Tax (note (iii)) RS (FFE i)
— Charge for the year — KEFEERX 159,468 48,576
— Overprovision in prior years — BEFEBREEE - (10,056)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (note (iv)) R B+ b 3B (E AR (B R (iv)) 334,069 18,700
493,537 57,220
Deferred tax (note 20) IEFERLIE (fi5E20)
Origination and reversal of temporary Ty =R 2 EE REE
differences:
— Revaluation of properties — YEE (23,267) (56,234)
— Deductibility of PRC Land — PR HIBER A HREE
Appreciation Tax 2,501 (2,745)
— Pre-sale properties in the PRC — REEEYE 47,666 (50,143)
— Tax losses — BIEEE 1,762 (21,420)
28,662 (130,542)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year ZAFEEFFEZ ~CGEIR) 25 552,199 (73,322)

Notes:

(0

(i)

(i)

(V)

132

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or overseas corporate tax
has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group did not have assessable profits in Hong Kong or overseas for
the year (2014: Nil).

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been provided at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% on the assessable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China (2014: 25%). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by
the tax authorities.

it

(i)

(i

(v)

REBRERRBRELES ([REE
LEE D RUER  AEERBER
ENREBRELEESBABMNERNMAE
i o

HARNEBAENY EEE B GINE
HERERRFUEF - EUL R AR A B R
RIRBEBFEH KB EMEH
T NF: &) o

RS ([REMREH])

PR EMER 2 BERIBEAEER
FR B A3t 2 [ BB A ) 2 FE AR B ek Al i
B E8H R25% (= Z — M4 : 25%)
FTE o HibhnR 2 RS TR A E
EREEBERR 2 ERHRTE -

o B IR ([ LB ER )

T B ERR T g E (B E WA
BRIBRAIHR S ) (B IE LA A
BRAAREMYEERRESH)) LR
EFE30% 2 60%HU - AEEER
BRI R AR AR 2 A8 E
IR EREITERT © FHRBELET
ABE - ERBSEE TR ERAE
A+ LIS ER B EAEFISEEN
IR LA
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11. INCOME TAX (continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before

tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates

(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

RS Ae D)

BARBTNETEME AR EMKLZ
BERORE VXA EERRRBR A S
M,/ (R 2B E B EIZ BT R
H2HRBERZERIERRE (AVEE
PiR) BB R 2 HERIT -

2015 2014
—E-h8F —T-NF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Profit/(loss) before tax BrEAnE R, (E18) 501,367 (190,416)
National tax calculated at rates HEANBEBBEER
applicable to profit/(loss) in the tax BRI () 2 HRAE 2
jurisdictions concerned BENIEA 93,931 (65,764)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BEBTEIR 2 BIEARIE 2
of previous periods P - (10,056)
Losses attributable to a joint venture —faEhEEG 2 EIE 8,000 294
Income not subject to tax A 2 WA (99,911) (65,673)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z S 56,197 39,744
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 HIBERE 257,939 8,593
Deductible temporary difference RERZ AR EREER
not recognised 5,804 (4,485)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% HARSE BB R
on the distributable profit of a PRC A 53k a A4 109% =ik
subsidiary of the Group and effect tax TEIR A E R EAREE
at 10% on the interest income from BB R RIEINERA
offshore loans of a Hong Kong FBULAIR 10% #FL HY
subsidiary of the Group B 21,736 —
Utilisation of deductible temporary AR BT FE RERA
differences not recognised AR ER
in prior years (72,049) —
LAT T ibIRER 334,069 18,700
CIT effect of LAT TIIRER 2 BEMERTE (83,517) (4,675)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s REAGCEERBETEZHE
effective rate B CERR) 522,199 (73,322)

No tax attributable to a joint venture during the year is included in

“Share of losses of a joint venture” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.
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12. DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

134

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the parent of $262,693,000 (2014:
$176,026,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 4,697,347,000 (2014: 4,139,285,000) in issue.

Diluted earnings per share

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2015. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, no adjustment has been made
to the basic loss per share amount presented in respect of a
dilution as the impact of the convertible bonds outstanding
during that year had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss
per share amount presented.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

12. BB

ARTEFTRBXABRE-FT 0T
toASt-RLEEZ KRS (ZF

—PE : E) -

13. LA EBRIFE AENL
BREE
() BREAERE

(b)

BREARNEBEIRE A REE AR
167 /&5 18 262,693,000 7T ( ==& — [
& :176,026,00070) KB BT E
3 A% hn 4 S 39 204,697,347,000 A%
(ZZ— P04 : 4,139,285,000 A% )

B8 -
BEREEEF

BHE-_ZT—AFT-HA=1+—H1F
FE - AERTEETHELE
BTEBR - HE_T—HF =
A=1T—RHLLFE r B HRLIA
ZABRESHZFENZI2E
BREANBESHEARBEESE i
WEARMEY 2 BRERNBES
H o

BEERERRARAA » T HFFW



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 2% - BEKRE

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures, and Motor Leasehold  Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BiFER Gl - %8 e
BT k&% RE ML KEIR @5t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i T r i i
31 December 2015 “E2-IF+ZA=t-R
At31December2014and  RZE-METZA=T-HR
at 1 January 2015: RZE-RE-A-A:
Cost A 7,815 8,731 6,300 58,233 552,992 634,071
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE
and impairment (913) (1,702) (2,118) (9,791) - (14,524)
Net carmying amount REFE 6,902 7,029 4,182 48,442 552,992 619,547
At1 January 2015, net of R-Z-hE-f-R
accumulated depreciation (R EFHTERAE)
and impairment 6,902 7,029 4,182 48,442 552,992 619,547
Additions ME 785 12,350 - 33,539 236,822 283,496
Transfers from investment BRRENE (Mit10)
properties (note 16) 3,067,454 - - - - 3,067,454
Transfer to completed EZRTHENE
properties held for sale - - - (44,469) - (44,469)
Disposals e - (12 - - - (12)
Depreciation provided during ~ EMEHEZ &
the year (415) (2,31) (1,025) (3,104) - (6,915)
Impairment B - - - - (216,585) (216,585)
Exchange realignment i (183,613) (228) (52) (681) (48,890) (233,464)
At 31 December 2015, netof ~ R=Z—RAEF-A=1-H
accumulated depreciation (MR 2T ERAE)
and impairment 2,891,113 16,768 3,105 33,721 524,339 3,469,052
At 31 December 2015: RZF-RFT-A=1+-R:
Cost R 2,892,388 20,590 6,185 42,348 740,924 3,702,435
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHTERAE
and impaiment (1,275) (3822) (3,080) (8621) (216,585) (233,389)
Net camying amount FEFE 2,891,113 16,768 3,105 33,727 524,339 3,469,052
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B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. 1% - BERZE @

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures, and Motor Leasehold Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BIEER KA RE HE
JEF Rkt at: NEEE fERIE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T i T T T
31 December 2014 “E-METZA=1-R
At 1 January 2014: RZZ-ME-A-R:
Cost WA 9,636 1,718 3719 1841 - 16814
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and imparment (698) (810) (2,143) (303) - (3,954)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,838 908 1,576 1538 - 12,860
At1 January 2014, net of RZE-ME-A-A
accumulated depreciation (REsHrERAE)
and impairment 8,838 908 1,676 1,638 - 12,860
Additions HE - 9,097 4715 56,763 562,992 623,567
Disposals e (1,357) (1,582) (1,227) - - (4,166)
Depreciation provided during ~ EREHRZITE
the year (349) (1,268) (846) (9,494) - (11,957)
Exchange realignment 3 (230) (126) (36) (365) - (757)
At 31 December 2014, netof  B=F-ME+-A=+-F
accumulated depreciation (2 ERAE)
and impairment 6,902 7,029 4,182 48,442 552,992 619,547
At 31 December 2014: RZF-MET-A=1-R:
Cost A 7815 8,731 6,300 58,233 552,992 634,071
Accumulated depreciation  ZEHTERE
and impairment 913 (1,702) (2,118) (9,791) - (14,524)
Net carying amount REFE 6,902 7,029 4182 48,442 552,992 619,547
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15.

As at 31 December 2015, certain items of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
$8,435,000 (2014: $6,902,000) were pledged to secure interest-
bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in
note 27.

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors appointed a professional
appraiser to perform appraisals on the assets of a project located
in Madrid for the purpose of determining whether the assets have
been impaired. Impairment indications, such as changing market
and political environments, and the Directors therefore determined
that this project was impaired. An impairment loss of $216,585,000
(2014: Nil) has been recognised in respect of construction in
progress for the year.

As at the date of these financial statements, the recoverable
amount of construction in progress of the project has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using discounted
cash flow projections based on the project’s five-year financial
budgets approved by the senior management of the project.
The net cash flows in the fifth year are used as a basis for future
income flows and are extrapolated at an appropriate rate of 1.8%
for sixth to tenth year, having regard to the project’s prospects
and the anticipated level of inflation. The discount rate of 8.75% is
applied to the projections of the first 10 years. The cash flows in
the eleventh year are capitalised at an assumed capitalisation rate
of 6%.

FREEHOLD LAND

Freehold land represents the land acquisition cost, stamp duty,
legal fee and other acquisition costs in relation to the Group’s

14. 9% - MENRE®

15.

R-ZE—AF+-A=+—0 X&EH
BR % (E 498,435,000 T ( — B — P £ :
6,902,0007T) 2 W% - WE REHBEZE
FEEEERE  URSAEBERZ
STRSRITIE R (M s 27 PR EE) o

R-ZBE—RHE+-_A=+—8 B=Z
F—RBEMEMBUARTEEZEE
ZEEETIE UETZEERD

BRE - AR IR TS R BURIRE 6
SBYERETNSR  WESEEZHEHED
HIERBE TR ARRERERLR
MR R (E & 18 216,585,000 7T (= Z — M
F ) o

RZEPHRERAY - WBBZHEZTIE
ZARE B R EREEERLE
AERBEESREEEBHEZZERZ
hERMBREELZITRASRER
AETE - ®ERIAR ZAI = RFARBEK
KFE - FRAFZREREFESER/K
KRAREZEE  MEAE+FZR
EREFHEERITEE1.8% R -
8.75% ZMMEXTIARE +F 2R -
ENFZHERERBREER RS
FTINEARLE

I A SERE L il

IKAFE LI A K BB R
FEBER 2 D HWBRA - EIFER -

acquired projects which are situated in London and Madrid. EEE R REABEERA o

2015 2014

—E-RfF —E—F

$°000 $'000

T T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 1,129,596 321,121
Additions NE - 902,245
Exchange realignment i R (99,644) (93,770)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT—H=+—BZEHE 1,029,952 1,129,596

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2015




138

. 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

16. REY=

Investment

Completed properties under

investment  construction or
properties development Total
(=5 EESRES
REWE REMZE et
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T 7T
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—MF—HA—H 2,734,384 — 2,734,384
Additions NE — 548,962 548,962
Transfers from completed EREERTAEYE
properties held for sale 76,752 — 76,752
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value ‘A7 BEFAZW(FE)
adjustment et (146,711) 25,538 (121,173)
Reversal of over-accrued FRREEET B R A AN 2 B
development costs (6,244) — (6,244)
Exchange realignment VEE W EE (66,551) (4,393) (70,944)
At 31 December 2014 and R_T—MEF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+T—HK
—T-RF—HA—H 2,591,630 570,107 3,161,737
Additions NE 3,364,805 519,593 3,884,398
Transfers from completed ERADRTAHEME
properties held for sales 15,220 — 15,220
Transfers between investment ~ fEZIEWE K
properties under construction 3% T E Y3 ~ R
and completed investment
properties 1,081,977 (1,081,977) —
Transfers to owner-occupied = q A (WE14)
property (note 14) (8,067,454) — (3,067,454)
Net gain from a fair value AR EERARREFE
adjustment 15,433 — 15,433
Exchange realignment bE H % (153,846) (7,723) (161,569)
At 31 December 2015 R-T—RF
+=ZA=+—8H 3,847,765 - 3,847,765
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

On 23 January 2015, the Group’s overseas subsidiary, Wanda One
Sydney Pty Ltd (“Wanda One Sydney”), entered into agreements
with Valad Commercial Management Limited and 31 Pitt Street Pty
Ltd., pursuant to which the Group acquired investment properties,
1 Alfred and 19-31 Pitt Street in Sydney, Australia, at a total
consideration of AUD487,699,000 (approximately $2,900,248,000)
on 4 March 2015. The total fair value of 1 Alfred and 19-31 Pitt
Street at the acquisition date was AUD488,800,000 (approximately
$2,906,796,000). On 4 March 2015, Wanda One Sydney entered
into an agreement with Rugby Club Limited, pursuant to which the
Group acquired an investment property, 31a Pitt Street in Sydney,
Australia, at a total consideration of AUD21,000,000 (approximately
$126,356,000) on 17 September 2015. The fair value of 31a Pitt
Street at the acquisition date was AUD21,000,000 (approximately
$126,356,000).

As at 31 December 2015, all the consideration for the acquisition
of the above properties had been paid. It is the intention of the
Group to redevelop the above properties in order to construct a
new high-end and mixed-use hotel, residential and retail complex
in the future and demolition of the existing structure is expected to
commence in the first half of 2017. Wanda One Sydney transfer
1 Alfred,19-31 Pitt Street and 31a Pitt Street from investment
properties to property, plant and equipment at the total fair value of
AUD509,800,000 (approximately $3,067,454,000).
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N-ZE—RE—A-+=H ' A&EH
Z & 5N K B A B]Wanda One Sydney
Pty Ltd([ & &E & JE 2 & 1) #Valad
Commercial Management Limited 5 31
Pitt Street Pty Ltd. 5] 3 5% + #Ut © &
EER_ZT—HAF=-ANBKERE
) 2R K F 5B E A Alfred & 19-31 Pitt
Street * 42X {8 A& 487,699,0008 JT (%)
2,900,248,0007z) ° 1 Alfred } 19-31
Pitt Street NE R H 2 A1 BERRE
/% 488,800,00038 7T ( 472,906,796,000
L) c R-E—HFE=AMAB » EEXKFE
‘A A 2 Rugby Club Limited 5] 37 1 &% -

B AEBR-_ZE—-—RENA T+
H W 1% & ) 3R K F 22 72K /B 31a Pitt
Street * #2 1X {B 521,000,000 7T ( 49
126,356,000 7T ) = 7 428 B Hi31a Pitt
Street Z A 7 {B1E A 21,000,00038 7T (49
126,356,000 7C) °

R-ZE—FHEF+-_A=1+—8H AK&EE
XU bty 2HRE - A&
EEESZ Ly URBRITES
BE - FERTER BT SES
ARG BIER - MERFREEME
BR-ZZE—+FL¥FHT - BEXRE
NABREMERDE - BERZHSE
1 Alfred ~ 19-31 Pitt Street }2 31a Pitt
Street 2 A7 {EEAR%EE A 509,800,000 8
7T (#93,067,454,0007T) °
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All the completed investment properties and investment
properties under construction or development, including
both land and building elements held by the Group were
revalued at the end of the year based on valuations
performed by an independent qualified valuer, DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ”) (2014: DTZ). DTZ is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation, who has
the appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation for completed investment properties was arrived
at by considering the capitalised income to be derived from
the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of
the properties, where appropriate, by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for the similar properties
in the same locations and conditions. The fair values of
investment properties under development are determined by
establishing the market values of the properties on an “as-if’
completed basis with appropriate deduction on construction
costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable margin.
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

Certain items of the investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 34 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015, certain items of the Group’s
investment properties with a carrying amount of
$1,256,002,000 (2014: $379,446,000) were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank borrowings and undrawn bank
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in note 27.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 188.

Notes to Financial Statements
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16. REWIZ )

(@)

AR THREY R RERIEY
XRERAR  BEAKEREN
THRBFTHERFRREBLA
ERGEEMBERITARAR ([H
BR217]) (ZZT—F - BERT)
ETOREETER - BIRERTRE
BREWFEMETENER - THA
B RIFH)E B ML A A AR
RERURHERER - BRT
BREMFEZEENEEENERA
HAOKEENEACRARBER
NES - Z(WER) 2 ZHEME
KRB R TISA R (E AT
B BRTPEREVENAAR(EETS
VAT ] B e TEEREWMHET
B WESEIREERRETTH
RELNZRNA  EXEAR
MEARAEMNBEE - FAMGE
7AW EAEEF) -

REMETZETREMEEBT)
METFE=D)7  HE—FHAIRN
FATS SRR PIRE 34 ©

R-_E—ARF+-_A=+—8"
7 £ B BR A {8 /& 1,256,002,000 70
—Z— P4 : 379,446,0007C) Z
‘EME 2 HETEHEEERR - A
MEAEEER 25 ERITERR
M AR IREERTIE B (MNP 5 27 AT i

&) -

REEREYEZE—FPFBHR
%1837 o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(c)  Fair value measurement of properties

16. REWIZ )

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

© MEZARBENE

TREFIREEREMEZAAE
Bt EEA

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 categorised into

Fair value at R-Z-RE+-A=+-H
31 December ZAREEFESER
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-Z-1%F
+=ZA=+-H
ZAREE £-% EZR E
$000 $°000 $000 $000
Tr T T Tr
Recurring fair value LEMAREBENE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties PERME 3,847,765 — — 3,847,765
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
Fair value at RZE-NE+=A=+—H
31 December JORBEFENER
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R_ZT—MmF
+=A=1+—8
ZRREE F— FR F=8
$'000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Recurring fair value BEUAREERE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties PERME 3,161,737 - - 3,161,737
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

142

(©)

Fair value measurement of properties (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil). The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

The Group’s management has discussion with the valuers
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each reporting date.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

16. REWIZ )

©)

MEZARBEFE(E)

FR - F-REE _FALTEE
B MERFE=ABAREL(Z
T—F: &) AEEZHER
REEEG 2 HERRERAAE
BEAR B -

RE&THE B RETRHER - AKE
EREGREERMNREERR
(YRS

AN RREYFGEMER 2 EE
TAREBEE A2 -

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable input Range
BAFAEE
fEEAR BAZH £E
2015 2014
—ZE-AF —E-mE
Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB37 RMB40
market rents -RMB211 -RMB251
per square meter
&% REE BREYAK AE¥ITRE AR 40TE
BimsiHge AR®211 7t AR#251 7T
Reversionary yield Mall: 6.0%-7.0% Mall: 6.0%-7.0%
Store: 5.0%-6.0% Store: 5.0%-6.0%
EREkEE #% 0 6.0%£7.0% | #%5:6.0%Z7.0%
JEE  5.0%Z6.0% | J5E : 5.0%%6.0%
Market approach Prevailing market price RMB47,100 RMB50,000
per square meter
[iEE% FFHARRITHE AR¥47,100 AR¥50,0007T
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(c)  Fair value measurement of properties (Continued)

16. REWIZ )

) WEZAREEEE)

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable input Range
BERFABE
HEFR BAZH EE
2015 2014
—E-hf —T-EF
Office Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB184 RMB184
market rents
per square meter
WRE KREX FREYIK AR#184 7T AR#1847T
RiTm5HEE
Reversionary yield 6.5% 6.5%
EHERERE 6.5% 6.5%
Market approach Prevailing market price RMB38,300 RMB38,000
per square meter
g FEFAKBRITHE AEK¥38,300 7T AR 38,0007T
Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB400 RMB400
market rents per lot -RMB1,500 -RMB1,500
FES RE* FASEER AR¥ 400 T2 AR 400LE
BOmsEe AR#1,500 7T AFRH#1,5007T
Reversionary yield 4.5%-5.0% 4.5%-5.0%
EHREE 4.5% Z5.0% 45%%E5.0%
Market approach Prevailing market price RMB390,000 RMB390,000
per lot
[RECVS BEEMIRITHE AK# 390,000 T AR® 390,000 7T

Rirminfe R EE L (A EME
P GIE=OEUE VNI EI R Sa A Y ES
AZMER S BRI - Hel
= AnBEYR - BRKERT)
B A EMRERGED R 2R
BRAREE - aEREE - Ak

EHUE -

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the
independent valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within
the subject properties and other comparable properties. The

higher the rent, the higher the fair value is. Reversionary yield
is estimated by the independent valuer based on the risk
profile of the properties being valued. The higher the yield,
the lower the fair value is.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. B Lt S=H1E

2015 2014
—E-8F —ZE—mEF
$°000 $'000
F T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEEE 20,432 21,476
Amortisation provided during the year FRETREEH (590) (519)
Exchange realignment PE W FAEE (866) (525)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEKmE 18,976 20,432
As at 31 December 2015, certain items of the Group’s prepaid RZE—RFE+A=+—H Xr&H
land lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately BREF(E 4 518,976,000L (= F — WM
$18,976,000 (2014: $20,432,000) were pledged to secure interest- % : 20,432,0007T ) 2 FEf L #h A & 7K
bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in HeaTHEEERER  ERIEAE
note 27. B R 2 5T BRITE R 2 ER (WM RE
27 FTi%ER) o
18. GOODWILL 18. B2
2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —ZE—mEF
$’000 $°000
Fr T
At 1 January: Rn—H—8:
Cost DE 372,324 372,324
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (369,007) (356,574)
Exchange realignment PE H A% 14,152 14,807
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 17,469 30,557
Impairment during the year FRREE - (12,433)
Exchange realignment b H (755) (655)
Carrying amount BREE 16,714 17,469
At 31 December: R+=Z—A=+—8:
Cost DE 372,324 372,324
Accumulated impairment HEPRE (369,007) (369,007)
Exchange realignment TE 5 A% 13,397 14,152
Net carrying amount IR FE 16,714 17,469
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Amazing Wise Limited in 2008. The cost of the goodwiill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of Amazing Wise Limited as at
the acquisition date.

The Group carried out impairment testing of the goodwill at
the end of each reporting period. In assessing the impairment
of goodwill, the recoverable amount of the cash generating
units (“CGU”) is determined. The CGU related to the goodwill
includes all subsidiaries located in Fuzhou. During the year ended
31 December 2015, the recoverable amount of CGU was re-
determined and accordingly, no additional impairment loss was
provided (2014: an additional impairment loss of $12,433,000 was
provided).

19. INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

18. B&E (@)

FmEEEE T T\ FYHEAmazing
Wise Limited 2 232 31 TAEAS » B8 2
P 7S $5 5 B B 7N B 780 7S &= B 7 Amazing
Wise Limited 2 A sk B B E ~ BERSA
BERKERBAZ AR FEZ -

REERSHREHRETEE ZRER
Ao R EEERERETREELS
(L ([BRESELBMN]) 2 KRESEE - &
HMEEHEZHESEEEMBEMREM
ZEHMBAR c BHEZT—RF+=
A=+ BLHFE REELBMZA
WElSREESHET @ WARTIREING
BEEE(ZT—F : sHEEINREEE
12,433,000 7T) °

19. R—BEEREZRE

2015 2014

—F-1F —TIF

$°000 $'000

T Tt

Share of net assets PMEZEEFE - 28,198
Loans to a joint venture BEXTF—HEeEhE 509,988 573,549
509,988 601,747
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INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continueq)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

19. A—REaELEZRE »

AEBEEREZFROT

Percentage of

Particulars Place of TSR EZEDL
of issued registration = Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
e 1T Bk e
=t RAZFE R R REE S2ER FEEWR
Ridong (Gold Coast) AUD Australia 55% 55% 55% Property
Development 4,583,622 development
Pty Ltd (“Ridong”)
Ridong (Gold Coast) 4,583,622 M MEER
Development JEIT

Pty Ltd ([Ridong )

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of
losses of Ridong because the share of losses of the joint venture
exceeded the Group’s interest in the joint venture and the Group
has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the
Group’s unrecognised share of losses of this joint venture for the
current year and cumulatively were $3,730,000 (2014: Nil) and
$3,730,000 (2014:Nil), respectively.

HRAEEEEEECEBREBEAR
EERNEGERE I Em  WRAEEE
BE—PREEBE  HAKEDKIL

FRIE(5 Ridong 2 518 © A& B ARTER
EHZEELENAFEBERZFTE
B9 553,730,000 L( ZF— U4 : )
% 3,730,000 7T (ZZF—PU4F : f&) o

BEERERRARAA » T HFFW



19. A—REaELEZRE »

TXREF|EBRidong ZAEERE
BetRRZERNEZEELAE - kA&

19. INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Ridong adjusted for any differences in accounting

policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial

REMBRAREEETHER

statements:
2015 2014
—E-hfF —=—mEF
$°000 $000
Fx Frx
Cash and cash equivalents Re MReEED 52,404 249,939
Other current assets EfbmehEE 3,694 67,665
Current assets MENEE 56,098 317,604
Non-current assets EMENEE 895,119 779,067
Current liabilities mEaE (30,748) (2,586)
Non-current liabilities SEMENBE (927,250) (1,042,816)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AE)FE (6,781) 51,269
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HMALERZAELE
in the joint venture: ZHEmZ HIR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBE AR 2L 55% 55%
Carrying amount of the investment "B ZRAEE - 28,198
2015 2014
—E-hfF —=—mEF
$°000 $000
Fx Frx
Revenue Uz 3 73
Interest income FEWA 3,281 1,519
Depreciation and amortisation e R (3,614) (87)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ANEEBEREHEBRE
for the year (58,050) (1,780)
Dividend received PR R - —
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. EEERIBEERERE

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) AEEREGRE T EARRRER ZELER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and BEE/ (BB)RSRERNBENT :

the movements during the year are as follows:

Pre-sale of
Revaluation properties
of properties LAT Tax loss in the PRC Total
BEF
MESME THIEER BEER /S et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T F T T T
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mF—HA—H (652,324) 52,318 — — (5600,0006)
Deferred tax credited FEEFABERE
to the statement ZIRIETIE
of profit or loss (BFsE11)
during the year (note 11) 56,234 2,745 21,420 50,143 130,542
Exchange differences =R 25,132 (1,304) (1,231) (383) 22,214
At 31 December 2014 and =T —F
1 January 2015 +ZR=+—Bk
—E-hF—H—H (470,958) 53,759 20,189 49,760 (347,250)
Deferred tax AEEHA/ (BRAE)
credited/(charged) BRREEHE
to the statement (BFE11)
of profit or loss
during the year (note 11) 23,267 (2,501) (1,762) (47,666) (28,662)
Exchange differences EHER 10,689 (2,248) 5214 811) 12,844
At 31 December 2015 R-_Z—4LF
+=-A=+—H (437,002) 49,010 23,641 1,283 (363,068)
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. EEEMIEBEER BB @
(Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RE SRR 2 $ER

2015 2014

—E-AF —E—UF

$°000 $'000

Ft T

Deferred tax assets EREFIBE & 156,798 123,708

Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (519,866) (470,958)

(363,068) (347,250)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

A AR TIE B RREERHEE

=

2015 2014

—E-RF —EF—F

$’000 $°000

Fr T

Unused tax credits AEAFIBE R 257,939 8,593
Deductible temporary differences AIHBEREER 5,804 (4,485)
263,743 4,108

The above tax losses mainly arising in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, the United Kingdom and Spain. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the above items can be utilised.
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21.

150

. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 5% to 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. As at 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately $45,472,000 at
31 December 2015 (2014: $13,902,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development expected to be completed within
the normal operating cycle and recovered:

20.

21.

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

EEFIEEEREE @

RIBFBEGEMBHE  HRNELE
KREETRRBRFEAMKTL ZINE
EREOBBEIE% E10% TR  fi
RE A EINR IR EE B R ERRE
RMEBEHBESE A REERMB
BEREH - R_FT—AF+_A="1—
B AEEYRREEREAMKLZ
B/ B A B TR B RO K B L & M B
REAEMNAIRNELERE - EF
RR ZEMNBRAARARS RS IR
BERBNNKE TN R_F—1F
TZA=+t—8 RHERmHEQR
MRERBNEREZRERRTD
45,472,000 7T (ZZ— M4 : 13,902,000
7T)  WEBRMHERELERIARE -

A ) ) EL B BRI A e B 3 KBS A PR AR

A
W2 o

(EXELIE S

ERYERASBRERLEBHATT
W TFIEEAKE

2015 2014

—E-hF —E—UF

$°000 $°000

Fx Tt

Within one year —FNRN - 601,368
After one year —F1% 2,501,950 2,405,245
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+ZA=+—HZKmE 2,501,950 3,006,613
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21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (contiues) ~ 21. T2 )

Analysis of the carrying amount of leasehold and freehold land RHEBEI DS ARFEME ZHE RKA
included in properties for sales by lease term is as follows: FRETH 2 BREESTT ¢
2015 2014
—E-8F —ZE—mF
$°000 $000
F T+
Held under: BATHORES
— long-term leases (over 50 years) — R KAL) (BB 504F)
in the PRC — 73,562
— medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) — FAARE Z A HIFAA (102 504F)
in the PRC — 136,089
Freehold land in the United Kingdom R 2 KA SR 833,846 877,414
Freehold land in Madrid REBEZ KAEELH 744,542 829,273
1,578,388 1,916,338
Properties under development represent the project cost, land EEMFREAARNEEMNER R SE
acquisition cost, compensation cost and other preliminary BrYHERBEE ZEBKA - Ll
infrastructure costs in relation to the Group’s property development B - FBHEEAREMATER
projects situated in the United Kingdom and Madrid. PR o
Vi S N1
22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22. FECE I Y=
All the properties held for sale are stated at cost. The Group’s FiERFEMFEUKARTIER - NEB 2 4F
completed properties held for sale are situated in Mainland China. EERTYH TR B o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22. FECERIYE »

(Continued)
Analysis of the carrying amount of leasehold land included in REBEI D AFEME LHE T2
properties for sales by lease term is as follows: IREEDTIT :
2015 2014
—E-hfF —=—mEF
$°000 $000
Fx Frx
Held under: BATHOREE
— long-term leases (over 50 years) — Rz REFFEA (BB 50 )
in the PRC 60,769 68,898
— medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) — FAAFEIZ FRERFRZ) (10250 4F)
in the PRC 88,814 42,894
149,583 111,792
As at 31 December 2015, certain items of the Group’s completed RZZE—RAF+-A=+—H ' ~&H
properties held for sales with a carrying amount of $9,580,000 8% (B 49,580,0000( — & — P4 £F :
(2014: $25,439,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank 25,439,000 ) 2 AR EE R IWMECE
borrowings and undrawn bank facilities granted to the Group as TIHEB /BRI - (ERRG RS BEER
disclosed in note 27. ZETBBRITERRHARRRITEEZ
AR (WP EE 27 PRI ER ) o
=3 =+
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ R HMERRIE
2015 2014
—E-hfF —=—mEF
Note $°000 $°000
ks Fr T
Trade receivables =) G a 65,253 70,590
Prepayments TERFIR 2,847 4,010
Deposits and other receivables e RHAEWEIE 497,515 988,294
Amounts due from related parties IR A A 708 8,118 9,262
Amounts due from an intermediate PR — AR AR A A
holding company FIE 1,870 1,836
575,603 1,073,992
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The amounts due from related parties and an intermediate holding
company are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

For the trade receivables arising from the sales of properties,
the Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving cash before
delivery of properties. The Group has set out policies to ensure
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group also
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable balance to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.

3. EZ R EAMEWECE =)

FEA R A+ B — Ao AR A B 2 3R
HIVEEW  RERIZEREE -

HHEMEELZBHREFAEMS
AEEEBEIMNYERANPREERE
EREERR - AN EC G E B RIARE
REIBRETTE BB R ER - AKH
ThE BB &R E R E 5 R IRE &
ZFARE SRR - PARER LT AT e Bl & FE
EHARZBERRE - EEFLAFE
ZEMERR - AREEERRAYE
ARRAE RS BE E 2 REEHRE
ARERE -

Note: MizE -
(@  The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is (@ REFZEAH - ZZEKFIEZREKRS
as follows: DL UNNE

2015 2014

—E-EHF —T—F

$’000 $'000

Fr T

Within 3 months =EARA 64,994 27,557

Over 3 months but within 6 months Ba=—EAENEAR - 22,465

Over 6 months but within 12 months ~ BB@/NERE+ @A R - 20,266

Over 12 months BaT+—EA 259 302

65,253 70,590

At 31 December 2015, no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of the Group’s trade receivables as the management
considers that the balance is fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over the balance (2014: Nil).
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I 24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

24. ZRFIRITERUAREE

RREEED

2015 2014
—F-1F —TIF

$°000 $'000

Fr FIT

Cash and bank balances & RIBITHERH 2,961,243 2,098,625
Time deposits JE B3R 7,758 88,198
2,969,001 2,186,823

Less: Pledged for long-term bank loans  J& : & AREIRITE ZKH (8,589) (83,208)
Pledged for a bank acceptance bil B A—IRTTHEE ZHEEA (2,148) —
(10,737) (83,208)

Cash and cash equivalents R MReEFEY 2,958,264 2,103,615

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $1,477,319,000
(2014: $1,728,787,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounting to $831,000, and time deposits amounting to
$7,758,000 (2014: $83,208,000) were pledged to secure interest-
bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in
note 27.

RREHKR - AEBUARBFEZE
& NIR1THE 2 B1,477,319,000 L (=&
— P04 : 1,728,787,00070) ° ARER
AERLSRAEMEY - A - BEP
B A b 2 HNEE S B AR R A5 PE ~ B IE
NEBERE  NEBEFETEREE
FEIINEXR ZRITHBARKE LB AE

RITEFIREE B RITF R RBREUE
BHE - BEHEMERE—BE=@AH
HRAE ST AKE KRS FK
e - WRE B 158 B B77 50 A) R R
BRHS - RITHEBEEREIBSHFAL
HAYY B K B Rdk 2 AEBRT

RZE—RF+ZA=1+—8H &~5E
B #EA831,000 T2 & RERTTAER X
7,758,000 7T 2 FE AfF (=& — U 4F -
83,208,000t ) B {EHE R - {EAEE A
SEER 25T ERITER 2R (K
27 FTi%ER) o
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B 5 K EA A RIE

RBER - BHRNHIA - BfbERN
AN ETER AT

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25,

An analysis of trade payables, other payables and accruals as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AEF —PF
Notes $°000 $°000
P EE Ft T
Trade payables = NG a 451,826 368,559
Other payables Hth T FIAR 177,365 126,442
Accruals JEEtE R 1,857 5,010
Interest payable to related parties FERTRAEA L F B b 59,454 23,586
Interest payable to an intermediate FEA —RER AR A A
holding company )N b 220,298 77,755
Interest payable to financial institutions ~ JE{< 4 BIHERE R 5, 23,757 22,307
Amounts due to intermediate FEIS R EERR A A
holding companies E QL] C 1,127,430 290,213
Amounts due to related parties i H fAiE A LTFUE c 18,779 167,305
2,080,766 1,081,177
Portion classified as current liabilities NEAERBEEZHS (1,860,468) (1,003,422)
Non-current portion JERNHEAER 2 220,298 77,755
Notes: BdaE -
a, None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after a. MEAREEE S ENRBBRER —F

one year (2014: Nil).

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date is as

BREE(ZT—MmF : &) -

RIFEHZAH 2 E FRNFIBLZ RS

follows: T -
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—PuF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Within 3 months =EAR 434,259 330,026
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EAENEAR 7,015 6,532
Over 6 months but within 12 months ~ B@/NEAE+—E AR 37 13,859
Over 12 months Be+=M@A 10,515 18,142
451,826 368,559
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continueq)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The amount of $220,298,000 in interest payable to an intermediate
holding company is repayable after more than one year (2014:
$77,755,000), while the interest payable to related parties is
repayable on demand or within one year. These interest payables are
unsecured and are not subject to compound interests.

@ The amounts due to intermediate holding companies and related
parties are repayable on demand or within one year and all these
balances are unsecured and interest-free.

RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Advances from customers represent sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties.

LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Loans from financial institutions were repayable as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

25. B R EHMENFUE @)

iz : (&)

b.  FER—REFREERA RFE 220,298,000
TT(=Z—PU4: 77,755,0007T) AT R —
FlREE  ENEEALFEEREK
FR—FENEE - ZEENF EAER
R BES R -

c.  [EfTHRREERA R REIEALZFIES

AREBNRY —FNEER - MASEHRD
MAEERLRE -

26. TAYFIE

EEBFERAREEE 2MEMAE
JTUER 2 SHE P 1S 500R ©

27. TRIMIBE X

TRIMIBEERZEFBMT

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—UF
$°000 $°000
Fx Tt
Current: BNER :

Bank loans — secured IRITER — HIEH 1,539,783 119,916

Non-current: FERNER -
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HIEH 1,350,612 1,463,642
2,890,395 1,583,558

Repayable: BN
Within 1 year or on demand —FRFIREK 1,539,783 119,916
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 314,493 352,188
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEZRBRFNA 955,892 1,056,564
After 5 years AF& 80,227 54,890
2,890,395 1,583,558
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27. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

(Continued)

Except a bank borrowing which bears interest at fixed interest rate
at 2.6%, the Group’s bank borrowings bear interest at floating
rates, the range of the effective interest rates during the year is as

follows:

27. TRIEBER @

Bk — S IRIT R FIRE E N E2.6%5 8
oh - RNEBZ RITEFIRFBHH KRG
B FAZERMERBELLT

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—F

Effective interest rates

BRI

2.60%-6.90% 1.20%-7.36%

(@)

As at 31 December 2015, there were no undrawn bank
facilities of the Group (2014: $10,000,000).

Certain loans from financial institutions as at 31 December
2015 were guaranteed by Mr. Chen Chang Wei (“Mr. Chen”).

Certain loans from financial institutions as at 31 December
2015 were guaranteed by an intermediate holding company,
Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. and were
secured by the shares of Wanda Madrid Development, S.L..

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the year
were denominated in RMB, GBP, US$ and $. The denominated

R-B—FFE+-_A=+—H =&
EEWEHKERZRTEE(Z
Z—PO4 : 10,000,0007T) °

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—H &
TERBBEERBRERTE (TR
DR

R_E-—RE+_-_RA=+—8"
ETEREBERS —ME+HME
BRAFRNESEREHERNA
R A A HER - I LA Wanda Madrid
Development, S.L. Z BAD{EHAR ©

FR - AREZ2EBERZREEG A
AR - BHE - XTRTEE - RER

amounts at the year-end are as follows: ZEBHESENT
2015 2014
—B-hfF —ZE—mE
$°000 $000
Ft Tt
RMB loans and borrowings ARBERRER 502,455 264,470
GBP loans and borrowings BHEERNER 1,147,780 —
US$ loans and borrowings ETLERMER 1,240,160 1,241,088
$ loans and borrowings TTERRER - 78,000
2,890,395 1,583,558
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

27. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 27. TRIMBE R (@)

(Continued)

Assets of the Group pledged to secure the loans from financial AEEEERERUNGSRBEERR

institutions and bank facilities comprise: RITEECEER
2015 2014
—E-hfF —Z—mEF
$°000 $000
Frx T
Building held for own use (note 14) BIEEBRZEF (M5 14) 8,435 6,902
Prepaid land lease payments (note 17) T8 - E 78 (FFE17) 18,976 20,432
Investment properties (note 16) &Y= (KisE16) 1,256,002 379,446
Completed properties for sales (note 22) FEE R T (Mit22) 9,580 25,439
Restricted bank deposits (note 24) ZRRHRITFR (FIFE24) 8,589 83,208
1,301,582 515,427

28. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES AND AN 28. BFAEA T K —REHEZER

=] 1 =%
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY NEEK
Loans from related parties and an intermediate holding company FBAEALTE —HPHERAGERZE
were repayable as follows: ST ¢
2015 2014
—ZE-hfF —ZE—mEF
Notes $°000 $°000
B sE Fr T
Current: BIHA -
Loans from related parties BiEALTER a 141,553 225,026
Non-current: FERNES -
Loans from related parties BB ALTER a 189,194 —
Loans from an intermediate —REFEERAFR
holding company B b 5,629,832 3,451,423
5,819,026 3,451,423
158 BEERERRARAT o —T—hFFW




28. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES AND AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

The loans are obtained from an entity controlled by Mr. Chen, who
is a shareholder of the Company and previously filled a role of Non-
executive Director up to 19 June 2015 and retired subsequently.
Certain loans from the entity controlled by Mr. Chen, amounting
to $48,199,000 (31 December 2014: $225,026,000) that bear
interest at 15% per annum, are unsecured and repayable six months
after the date of the respective drawdowns. Certain loans from
another entity controlled by Mr. Chen, amounting to $282,548,000
(81 December 2014: Nil) that bear interest at 13.5% and 11% per
annum, are unsecured and repayable from nine months to twenty-
one months after the date of the respective drawdowns. Interest
incurred during the year ended 31 December 2015 and interest
payable to related parties as at 31 December 2015 are set out in
notes 8 and 25 respectively.

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate
holding company during the period were denominated in GBP, Euro, US$
and AUD. The denominated amounts at the year-end are as follows:

28. BAE AT K —BEHPEER

ANCIE=ENED
it -
a  HRUARAZBEREL(ENE

m;ffﬁﬁﬁﬂ+nazmﬁﬁ#
HITESHBH = RITRBERRE) &
#lz —FEEEESE - K EMREEET
2 B B2 2 48,199,0007C ( — & — O 4
+=-A=+—H8 :225026,0007T) &

¥%%E¢ﬂ$w%ﬁ%~ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
WERERZE BRI A %/ EA
magoxaﬁﬁiiﬁzﬂ
2.282,548,0007C( =& — 0 G + =
A=+—RH: &) ETEREFEREX
13.5% K 11%5T 8 - B AL AR
BRzE&ARBASBNAEAZ=+—
BMAREE -HE_T—HF+=A
= t+—HBLEFEEAZFERR=E

—AFE+-A=t—"BRENEEALZ
M ED BB FES K 25 °

Ef

C AEE—EREERARZEE
AMZ$EEWM§% BT~ Erk

BITEHE - RERZEREHESREMNT ¢

2015 2014

—EB-HF —Pu4F

Notes $’000 $'000

PiEE Fr Fx

GBP loans and borrowings BHEERRIER 0] 1,373,291 1,275,959

Euro loans and borrowings BTERRER (i) 1,131,590 1,240,295

US$ loans and borrowings ETTERRER (ii) 683,771 684,530

AUD loans and borrowings SBITER KGR (ii) 1,271,226 250,639

AUD loans and borrowings RITTE R RIER (ii) 1,169,954 —

5,629,832 3,451,423

Notes: Fff5E

0] These loans bear interest at a rate of six month LIBOR plus 5% (i) ZEE LN E A mBERITRZE
per annum, certain items of which are secured by the shares 7 «%‘JJD¢5% e EAET

of Wanda International Real Estate Investment Limited held by
the Company.

(i) These loans are interest-free.

(i)  These loans bear interest at a rate of 7.25% per annum.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

28. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES AND AN 28. BEAN LR —EHEER
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (Gontinued) NEER @
Notes: (Continued) et (&)
c.  As at 31 December 2015, undrawn facilities granted by an c. WRIZ—RF+=ZA=+—H ' B—MH
intermediate holding company to the Group amounted to AR REE AR A Al A A & B 2 R IR ER
$4,030,520,000 (2014: $2,684,130,000). {58 %4 4,030,520,000 7T (= B — U4

2,684,130,0007T) ©

29. CURRENT TAXATION 29. BNEATR I8
2015 2014
—E-fF —E—EF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Prepaid tax: TERFIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax Al 2 PTISE - —
PRC Land Appreciation Tax A B S (E 87 60,324
87 60,324
Current tax payable: FEBNEATRIA
PRC Corporate Income Tax AR B {b S FTIS AR (136,146) (45,210)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax AR BB (350,126) (403,347)
(486,272) (448,557)
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. iR
2015 2014
—E-fRF —Z=-mEF
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE -
4,697,346,488 (2014: 4,697,346,488 fIx (—Z — U4 -
4,697,346,488) ordinary shares 4,697,346,488 %) L A% 469,735 469,735

160 BEBERRERQF » T AFFRH



30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

30. BA )

ARARAEDEENT

follows:
Number of Share
shares in Share premium
issue capital account Total
28T
RAEE P A R BRERR £y
’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T FAT THT TET
At 1 January 2014 RZE—WF—HA—H 2,855,911 285,591 51,037 336,628
Issued shares BE1TRG 856,773 85,677 2,381,830 2,467,507
Conversion of convertible bonds ~ H B[ ES 984,663 98,467 83,681 182,148
Release upon the fully conversion — FAZEEUL AT IR (& 565
of the convertible bonds #[ol — - (564,095) (564,095)
Share issue expenses Bin BT - - (17,187) (17,187)
4,697,347 469,735 1,935,266 2,405,001
At 31 December 2014, RZZT—MF
1 January 2015 and +-A=t+—H8"
31 December 2015 “E-RF—-A-HEK
—T-hF
+-A=+—H 4,697,347 469,735 1,935,266 2,405,001
Note: BdaE -

(@) The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

31. RESERVES

(@) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64 of
the financial statements.
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. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in Mainland China is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC, the United
Kingdom, Spain, Australia, the British Virgin Islands and the
United States of America.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital
of the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in connection
with group reorganisation; and (ii) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in relative interests as a result changes in the
Group’s interests in Amazing Wise Limited that do not result
in a loss of control.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31. fRE

(b)

RBEERFZ
BRI E

BiraBEREaRE—NN\—
FREVERE -

BB

REFERAREETEEEQF
ZHBEEBER  AEERTH
M 2 &M B A R AR ER
7 BC10% B BR 1R A (IR B
SETHIEETE) 2AERBRRFE -
BEERERHBERSBEMELRD
50% °

B 5 e

AEEZES R emrEPE -
RE - EIEST RN - R A
B NEBER 2 M EWMRELEZPT
BINEZRR ©

R

RER BN R e 1R () AR 2 RIFTUUEE
M AR 2 RAEEEFEEA DA
HEBMBAEMBITZRNEELZ
g Ri)MERRIFERERS
BELZHAE  URBEAREER
Amazing Wise Limited 2 # 25 &

(W MmBBUR KITHIME) FTEE 218
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31. RESERVES (Continued) 31. & @

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) fREEHEE )

Distributable reserves A D IR

The Company’s share premium, capital reserve, special 73’\\ —RFE+ZA=+—H =K
reserve and retained profits as at 31 December 2015 may TZHQTﬁ/E{E - BN - R
be distributable to shareholders, after netting off with the RERRERFNRBRE— NN\ —
convertible bond reserve in certain circumstances prescribed FRAVEFESAGEBEEZETE
by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. SR AR E S FEE S

& T AR o

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of reserves RZE—RF+A=+—H "7
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the IR TR AR AR R 2 e
Company was $2,170,337,000 (2014: $2,555,218,000). %8 £52,170,337,000t( — & — M

£ : 2,555,218,0007C) °

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the RAREZITERREHE_T
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December —HFETZA=+T—RLFEZK
2015 (2014: nil). B(ZZ—UF &) o
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EAEIE
The Group had the following commitments for property RIEHRR - AEEYEERE T &
development expenditure at the end of the reporting period: R
2015 2014
—ET-RF —ZE-mEF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Contracted, but not provided for EEENEES 23 1,712,165 1,062,706
The above commitments mainly include construction related LA ETEZERASEZRREMSE
costs to be incurred in respect of the Group’s development of its HEMEELZERIEHFER -

properties projects.
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33.

34.

le4

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s loans from financial institutions, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 27 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 16 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements on terms
ranging from two to twenty years and with an option for renewal
after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be renegotiated.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

33.

34.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

BERA

AEERBEEEMERNSREEE
R FHBEUR B R I RE 27 ©

REHERE
tEREREA

AEERBEEHELHIHRENE
(M BBmERME6) RN F_E—+
FoAIRERRBEER  XEHNHE
PR -3 »

A& B AR B E A AT 2 A AT
REREN T RERE 2 R K& E
WHEEERNT

2015 2014
—E-hfF —E—UF
$°000 $°000
T 7T
Within one year —&FR 297,009 93,045
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEZhGF (BIEEEFE) 666,204 325,478
After five years AFE 1,350,403 1,187,711
2,313,616 1,606,234

As lessee 1EREBA

The Group leases certain office premises under operating lease
arrangements, negotiated for terms of five years with an option
for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

AEERBEEHELHEEETHA
EVE - BEAMSAF  AIRERR
BB - WEMBEPIE BN -

BEERERRARAA » —_T—HFFRH



34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34, BEHERE @

As lessee (Continued) EREEAN (2)
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non- REBRBEPATHESEHER T3 H
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: MEIE 2 KRR & DR 2 € A5
T
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Within one year —&FR 13,786 8,990
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEZhE (BIEEBEFE) 28,951 4,164
After five years hFi& 8,452 —
51,189 13,154
ey
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. AAREE
2015 2014
—E-5%F —T—UF
$°000 $'000
Ft Tt
Guarantees given to banks for: B TANEIREMES TIRITZHER
Mortgage facilities granted to BTAREEMEER
purchasers of the Group’s properties ZIEBEE 652,032 424,140
The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage AEEERETROBRTASEYHEE
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s R IRBEEMREER - REBERZ
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, PG WZFEERBRIZBEN
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers, AEBEEBEEEBRAZIRZBERAR
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage FEET R B REHNBERERRITZER
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by MASBEEREEHAME LG EE
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled o AEE ERABAREEBKIEE
to take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s FE AR EENEREIRmipEE
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the WMITIE L

relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.
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35.

36.

166

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group did not incur any material losses during the financial
period in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties. The Directors
consider that in case of default on payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection
with the guarantees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Transactions with key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors, is as

Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

35 &I\\\/\{E(ﬁ

AEERIUE TARENERER 21K
RS MR IER 2 B B I M 2 A AT
ﬂéﬁ%%°%$ﬂkﬁﬁﬁfkﬁ
- BRYE A ERFEREERRKR
E ZIRBE R KA ERT B A K &
o Bt - WERARERIELEE -

36. BEATRS

REBZTIE2EEABHM(BRE
ENARRESZFHR) AT ¢

follows:
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
$°000 $'000
F7 T
Short-term employee benefits HIEERA 6,818 12,060

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.

(b) Loans from related parties

Please refer to note 28 for the loans from related parties to
the Company. Interest incurred during the year and interest
payable to related parties as at 31 December 2015 are set
out in notes 8 and 25 respectively.

EENTRTBRAEME 2E—F
HBEHNMBHRERM T

0
e
=

TEX

i

(b)

ERBEATERTARRZHF
B B2HMNE8 RERE
EZFBERR-_ZTE—RAF+_A
=+—AEMBEEALZFES R
BRI FE8 K 25 °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Loans from an intermediate holding company

Please refer to note 28 for the loans from an intermediate
holding company to the Company. Interest incurred during
the year and interest payable to related parties as at
31 December 2015 are set out in notes 8 and 25
respectively.

Other related party transactions

Other amounts due from/to related parties are set out in
notes 23 and 25.

QOutstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s loans to its joint venture are included in
note 19 to the financial statements.

Applicability of Listing Rules relating to connected
transactions

The related party transactions in respect of loans from
related parties and loans from an intermediate holding
company above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Except for loans from related parties and loans from an
intermediate holding company above, none of these related
party transactions constitutes a connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules.
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I 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

168

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

37. RERE Dz BT A

RBERR - SEREBRTAZEREE

]

TREE

Loans and receivables

B R EWRIE

2015 2014
—E-IF —Z 4
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt

Financial assets included in trade FTAE S M E M WA
and other receivables ZEmMEE 572,756 1,069,982
Pledged deposits BIRER 10,737 83,208
Cash and cash equivalents R MReEEY 2,958,264 2,103,615
3,541,757 3,256,805

Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERTIIRzEBEE

2015 2014
—E-fF —T—F
$°000 $°000
F Tt

Financial liabilities included in trade FTAE S R EAE R FRIE
and other payables ZEmesE 2,078,909 1,076,167
Loans from financial institutions © B E K 2,890,395 1,583,558
Loans from related parties FEBALTER 330,747 225,026

Loans from an intermediate —RR AR AR ER
holding company 5,629,832 3,451,423
10,929,883 6,336,174
EEZBERERERART « —T—hFFH



38.

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments are
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets included in trade
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in trade and other
payables, amounts due from/to related parties and intermediate
holding companies approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The Directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:
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170

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (through the impact
on floating rate borrowings).

39. EREMRE

Notes to Financial Statements
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SIEERERBER
(#&)

FEEB

AEEEB MENEEH T ARTER
EAREEAFBAERGFEZEGAR

TRETEMBHEMEERTTE 2B
AT - REB 2 BRBANEN, (E18) (B
FEERZTE) BN REEAREES
BRAZE -

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) in

in basis profit/(loss)

points before tax

MRBLAT

LA (TH) wmH (E8)

EE 2 i O a)

'000 $°000

+ 7T

31 December 2015 —RFE+-A=+—8 100 (17,426)
31 December 2014 “T-MFE+-A=+—H 100 (3,425)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the year
and had applied the exposure to interest rate risk to those bank
and other borrowings in existence at that date. The estimated
percentage increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the year until the end of the next reporting period.

BEBERRERQF » —FT—

LR E DT T REEF R E B F R
B A - WS FI R R A E I AR %
HEGEZZERITREMER - (A5t
AN D B S I E R E R R R E
NEZE NMEREHRRZARAIEEE
2 o

RFFR



39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB, GBP,
EUR, USD and AUD. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, the United Kingdom, Europe, the USA
and Australia are RMB, GBP, EUR, USD and AUD, respectively,
and these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets
or liabilities denominated in currencies other than their respective
functional currencies. The functional currency of the Group’s other
subsidiaries is HK$.

The Company is exposed to currency risk primarily through
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, current taxation,
loans from financial institutions, loans from an intermediate holding
company and amounts due from subsidiaries that are denominated
in GBP, EUR, USD, AUD and RMB.
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39. RiEE
(%)

I 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES LRI G

AND POLICIES (Continued)
SINEEE [R\Bs (42)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

TRINRAER ZRBATEFN, (BER)
$EIZ%%EA$&¢HH9K¥¢E$ZE\

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange

rate on the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax and the Group’s equity. AlRE BB o BURE o
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase/
exchange profit/(loss) (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
RRBE AT
= w7 (E1E) s
&, i) 24, CR4) g R *
% $°000 $°000
Fr Fr
2015 —2-HF
If the Hong Kong dollar finl 78 7T H BT B2 B
weakens against the EUR 1 (6,861) (6,861)
If the Hong Kong dollar fiw 78 T H BT IS E
strengthens against the EUR 1 6,861 6,861
If the Hong Kong dollar BT R AR A
weakens against the GBP 1 (33,709) (33,709)
If the Hong Kong dollar finl P8 7T H R SR E
strengthens against the GBP 1 33,709 33,709
If the Hong Kong dollar BT i R Ttz A
weakens against the USD 1 (20,608) (20,608)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT R ETTEE
strengthens against the USD 1 20,608 20,608
If the Hong Kong dollar fis 7T BT (B
weakens against the AUD 1 (27,754) (27,754)
If the Hong Kong dollar fis 7T R TR E
strengthens against the AUD 1 27,754 27,754
If the Hong Kong dollar B THARBRE
weakens against the RMB 1 (168) (168)
If the Hong Kong dollar i 7S T H AR E
strengthens against the RMB 1 168 168
172 EEBEERRARDR o _T—ALFFR



39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. 2 miEEEEENRER

AND POLICIES (continued) (#&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SNER R ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
e & B0 B4 A B
20, Of ) 2, Cfd) g, CRd) >
% $000 $000
T Fi
2014 —E-F
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 78 7T H BT B2 (B
weakens against the EUR 1 (6,823) (6,823)
If the Hong Kong dollar finl 78 7T H BT IR B
strengthens against the EUR 1 6,823 6,823
If the Hong Kong dollar i 78 7T SR EE R (B
weakens against the GBP 1 (12,210) (12,210)
If the Hong Kong dollar il BT H R R g (E
strengthens against the GBP 1 12,210 12,210
If the Hong Kong dollar WS iRtz E
weakens against the USD 1 (18,392) (18,392)
If the Hong Kong dollar fiw 78 7T 2 LI (E
strengthens against the USD 1 18,392 18,392
If the Hong Kong dollar BT R IR TE A
weakens against the AUD 1 3,229 3,229
If the Hong Kong dollar fis B 7T Rt IEE
strengthens against the AUD 1 (3,229) (8,229)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARERE
weakens against the RMB 1 4,870 4,870
If the Hong Kong dollar i T H A REIEE
strengthens against the RMB 1 (4,870) (4,870)
* Excluding retained profits * NERERE T
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I 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the
Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate balance
of cash at banks, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables.

For deposits at banks and financial institutions, deposits are only
placed with reputable banks.

For the trade receivables arising from the sales of properties,
the Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving cash before
delivery of properties. The Group has set out policies to ensure
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group also
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable balance to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.

In addition, the Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees to secure
obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure
of these guarantees is set out in note 35. Except for these financial
guarantees by the Group as set out in note 35, the Group does not
provide guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of each reporting period is disclosed in note
5.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 23.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

39. tiE R EEBENRBER

(%)
EERR

AEBYEEMETEERR - NEE
ZEERRSRRTEE - XREIRT
TER AN B 5 N B At U R IR 2 45 R AR
I

MIBITREREBEARMNE  TRET
BAMEER AT 2 8R1T °

MHEMEEEZEIRWFEMS -
AEBEEBEXNYEMPREHRES
EEEERR - NEEE HERR AR
REMBETR RO ARER - AEEH
IR IE #AE B & 1R (8 51| & 5 8 WK IR A5 #R
Z AT E S BE - PAREGR 3L AT U Bl 5 B8
EH R ZRERTE - HES LKA
ZEMERR  AREEERRANE
MRAKRAESAE B E E 2 BREEMRIE
BB R

BAN - AEESETHREMERZH
RITRE - WRHERMESZFTER
EBREEZER -  BAZFRERZFA
WEE N FESS o B T 7T 235 AT &
ZASBEMRRERZZEMBER KL
B m R R R AR EEHHEE R

B E\Axiﬁiﬁﬁﬂi - BREWBERE
B2 &= E BRI K RESSE KRR

BRASERE S MHEMEKFKIASI K
ZEERRBZHMECHBEHNME
23 °

BEERERRARAA » T HFFW



39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans, convertible
bonds and other loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

39. TR EIE B ERBER

(4)
RBESER

AEEFERAEEERDESHEITAR
REESHRZAR - ZTAERA
SECEMTAREREE (AR
RIB) 2 BB ARFEHEBRERE -

AEE Y BIEABBERBTER 0
ARG 25 S A B SR ORI
R 2 P2 -

RBEYR  AEEERERTHOARITR
MRz eMBEBBERET

payments, is as follows:

2015
—EB-RF
Less than
1 year or 1t02 2to5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FRg
RER —EWE MZRE BRRF st
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
T T T T Fr
Interest-bearing bank BRITIER
borrowings 1,649,587 368,836 1,023,193 84,712 3,126,328
Loans from related parties EE:&E A TEH 178,168 194,313 - - 372,481
Loans from an intermediate  — &= FE#EA% A 7]
holding company =7 1,442,246 847,439 2,844,875 1,522,719 6,657,279
Trade payables and ZIENFIER
other payables HAh R RIE R
and accruals [EFHER 1,848,096 143,881 86,932 - 2,078,909
5,118,097 1,554,469 3,955,000 1,607,431 12,234,997
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" 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  39. crlEMREE B ERBER

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REIEEREREE)
2014
—mF
Less than
1 year or 1to2 2t05 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FR%
HER —EmMF MERF b cRake= st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Interest-bearing bank FTERRITER
borrowings 183,692 413,909 1,215,313 - 1,812,914
Loans from related parties BEALTER 258,780 - - — 258,780
Loans from an intermediate  — & ¥R 7]
holding company =5 - - 3,765,343 - 3,765,343
Trade payables and ZIENRER
other payables HAth T RIE R
and accruals FEEtER 980,270 18,142 77,755 - 1,076,167
1,422,742 432,051 5,058,411 — 6,913,204
Capital management EAXEE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEAEBE X ZHEAREARSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and B BEREELE 7 W R EHIERE
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business BALE  UITRHEEXEBRBERSR
and maximise shareholders’ value. R EEE -
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments $'§ BEEEEEARER  WIRLEBR
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk & SEREBAEE 2 RARFEIEL AR -
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the B AREARERE  AEEXEH
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to M RIKE - B AR R K EITHAR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. B REEWENRBREZ - BERKE
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for FrE BB ABIEBEN o

managing capital during the year.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. £RiEMREEEERBE
AND POLICIES (continued) (%)

Capital management (Continued) EXREE (B

AEEFERERNERLEREBHEE
LERERER « ERBELERER AU
BREFERNEESNABRTFE - BF
FHEOECHEEER(BEAERIE
BNEAER ) « BEA T R —EPEERA
AEFRRE KA CESEMRBETT
Mo BEREHEELESUBAABRRERP
BHBRUNBEE - RBEHARZERE

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt-to-
asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises, loans from financial
institutions, including current and non-current portion, loans from
related parties and an intermediate holding company less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. The debt-to-asset
ratio is total liabilities net of advance from customers divided by
total assets. The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period

was as follows: BFEEZT

2015 2014
—E-REF —F—F
$°000 $°000
F Tt
Loans from financial institutions TRIEIBE R 2,890,395 1,583,558
Loans from related parties BiEALTER 330,747 225,026

Loans from an intermediate —fEPEER AT ER
holding company 5,629,832 3,451,423
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BeRRSEEY (2,958,264) (2,103,615)
Pledged deposits [REEwGIVES N (10,737) (83,208)
Net debt BEFRE 5,881,973 3,073,184
Total equity e 2,899,127 3,478,349
Total equity plus net debt miEm e ETRE 8,781,100 6,551,533
Gearing ratio BERAGFHEE 66.98% 46.91%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  39. €@iE e EIE B E R R
AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)
Capital management (Continued) EXREE(#)
The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was RERRZ EHHEEL DT ¢
as follows:
2015 2014
—E—RE —Pu4E
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Total liabilities weE 12,508,887 8,706,053
Less: Advances from customers B BPER (568,861) (1,445,354)
11,940,026 7,260,699
Total assets BEE 15,408,014 12,184,402
Debt-to-asset ratio EREEELR 77.5% 59.6%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. REHIEREIE
There are no events after the reporting period which should be T 5% 35 B 75 3 3= S fE B HA B N0 8 8 T 4

disclosed till the date these financial statements were approved.

A
B HmERLER -
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

4. QT AR TR

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RIEER - AR R B AT E R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ™
2015 2014
—E—-AF —ET—mF
$°000 $'000
F7t Tt
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N N ] 2,527 3,759
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 1,023,782 1,023,782
Loans to subsidiaries B ARIER 3,620,163 3,770,174
Due from subsidiaries G NGIE e 89,811 43,931
Total non-current assets IERBNVEELE 4,736,283 4,841,646
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H b ek 1,968,056 254,298
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EY 66,192 113,015
Total current assets mBEELE 2,034,248 367,313
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H e FRIE 771,294 166,068
Loans from financial institutions TRIEIBEE R 310,040 —
Total current liabilities BB ERE 1,081,334 166,068
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 952,914 201,245
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,689,197 5,042,891
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Loans from financial institutions TREEER 930,120 1,241,088
Loans from an intermediate —fEP R AR ER
holding company 1,958,581 728,381
Interest payable to an intermediate FEA— R BT A B FE
holding company 160,424 48,469
Total non-current liabilities SEREBEEE 3,049,125 2,017,938
Net assets BEEFE 2,640,072 3,024,953
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BATEEAEGER
of the parent
Share capital &N 469,735 469,735
Reserves (note) fit s (FIFE) 2,170,337 2,555,218
Total equity LS 2,640,072 3,024,953
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" 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  41. NN BB FEAR R 3R ()

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: =T -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NARREBRENT :
Convertible
Share Capital Special bond Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
AR ES
BRE  BRAEE SRRE #E REER et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T T Tt T 7T T
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF—A—H 51,037 60,264 127,961 (605,659) 792,627 426,230
Loss for the year and ~ NEEEE M
total comprehensive ~ AFEEE
loss for the year E5 B4R — — — — (300,636)  (300,636)
Issued shares B2ETRM 2,364,643 — — — — 2,364,643
Convertible bonds R kES
converted 83,681 — — (18,700) — 64,981
Release upon the izt S8R
fully conversion AR E S
of the convertible o
bonds (564,095)  (60,264) — 624,359 — —
At 31 December 2014 A ZZF—[H4F
and 1 January 2015 +—-—HA=+—H
MZZ—RF
—H—H 1,935,266 — 127,961 — 491,991 2,555,218
Loss for the year and ~ ANF[EZE1E K&
total comprehensive ~ AFEEEE
loss for the year BB 45 — — — — (384,881)  (384,881)
At 31 December 2015 A=Z—H4F
+=—A=+—H 1,935,266 — 127,961 — 107,110 2,170,337
Ding Benxi Liu Chaohui
TG 2IEE
Chairman Executive Director
B HITEE

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2016.
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Financial Summary

BATEEER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=t—HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F ZET—-F ZE-=F ZT-@OmOF| ZB-uHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHET FHT THER
RESULTS E
Revenue Wz - 2,773,419 1,347,995 185,849 2,176,737
Profit/(loss) before tax from — FHELLE 2
continuing operations BREATER (B518) 149,345 613,041 484,283 (190,416) 501,367
Income tax credit/(expenses) FHERLER 2
from continuing operations  FT§Fi%,/ (F) (17,626) (369,678) (250,382) 73,322 (522,199)
Results of discontinued BRIFREETS 2 S8
operations 516 — — — -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal ~ HEMERAFZ
on subsidiaries Wi/ (E18) %8 62,460 — (45,326) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEHERF (E8) 194,695 243,363 233,901 (117,094) (20,832)
Profit/(loss) attributable to &I FIEA A
owners of the parent FEIEEF, (B518) 185,411 232,335 190,879 (176,026) (262,693)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 9,284 11,028 43,022 58,932 241,861
Profit/(loss) for the year AELEF (E18) 194,695 243,363 233,901 (117,094) (20,832)

At 31 December

R+=R=t+-H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
“2——% ~"Z-_f “T-=f "Z-0NF| ZB-1fF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T TR TR THAT Tz

ASSETS and LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets BEE 7,215,414 6,168,259 4,822,152 12,184,402 | 15,408,014
Total liabilities =N 6,751,326 5,377,119 3,475,835 8,706,053 | 12,508,887
Net assets BEFE 464,088 791,140 1,346,317 3,478,349 2,899,127

Equity attributable to owners A RIS A

of the parent JE(L RS 370,237 663,406 540,499 2,769,147 2,188,931
Non-controlling interests It 93,851 127,734 805,818 709,202 710,196

Total equity BrER 464,088 791,140 1,346,317 3,478,349
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Property Portfolio
MEAE

1. MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 1. FEFEEYE

Expected
Stage of date of Gross Group’s
Location Intended use  completion completion Site area floor area interest
FEH REE
E RERZ ®IPEER %“ZIAH HEEE EEmEE Mg
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (%)
(FHK) (FHK)
1 Nine Elms Lane, Residential Under 2020 8,400 110,000 60%
London SW8 5NQ, and commercial ~ development —ZE=T4F
the United Kingdom FEREE R
Plaza de Espana, Residential Under 2020 4,655 90,000 60%
19, 28008, Madrid, Spain* and commercial  development —ZE =T
EEREE R
38-44 Old Burleigh Road, Residential Under 2019 11,355 144,000 33%
Surfers Paradise, and commercial  development —ZE—NF
Queensland, Australia FEREE R
4217
* Currently under comprehensive assessment and subject to IR IEETTAR S AT A R B IR HE /&
government approval
2. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 2. FESRIYE
Gross Group’s
Location Existing use floor area interest
rEH
NE AR EEEE Wiz
(sq-m.) (%)
(FFK)
Hengli City Residential and 6,241 50.35%
No. 128 Wusi Road commercial
Gulou District FEREE
Fuzhou City, Fujian
RN
SEE
F PR 128 5%
(EWAE
Site P05, north to Huan Cheng Nan Road Residential and 26,500 51%

182

No. 1, Guilin,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
the PRC

P EIERLZBRE
AT — 5

LAJE POS5 Hb 1R

commercial

FEREE
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3. MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT 3. FEEEREYE

Gross Group’s Term of

Location Existing use floor area interest lease
rEH

vE AR EEEE K g HE

(sg.m.) (%)

(FHK)

The Commercial Podium of Commercial 56,219 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [EES A
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
RN
SR
FPYEE 12858
EASAEET A
Portion of the Carpark of Commercial 11,804 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES R Hj
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
BN
ErgE
FPUEE 12855
EHRBDIFES
Portion of the Office of Commercial 11,450 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES * A
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
RN
SR
FPYEE 12858
BRI PAE

The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to [SES A
Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC
B EFEAL TR B AR
MR — B

AL POS 158 75 45
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Property Portfolio
MEEE

" 4. MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE 4, FEFEBRAYME

Gross Group’s
Location Existing use floor area interest
AEH
vE REAR EEmE Wz
(sq.m.) (%)
(FF7K)
40/F the office of Office 981 50.35%
Hengli City WRE
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
BEBIMNT
g
FPUREE 128 5%
BB 40ERAE
1 Alfred Street, Sydney Commercial 39,039 60%
New South Wales, HES
Australia 2000
19-31 Pitt Street, Sydney Commercial 7,992 60%
New South Wales, [EES
Australia 2000
31a Pitt Street, Sydney Commercial 2,363 60%

New South Wales, S
Australia 2000
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